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Chairman’s Statement 3 i #t 3

On behalf of the Board of directors, I present the
annual report of Winfoong International
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) for the year ended

31 December 2009.
[

FINANCIAL RESULTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group recorded

consolidated profit attributable to shareholders of approximately
HK$85.7 million.

DIVIDENDS

No interim dividend was paid and the directors do not recommend
the payment of a final dividend.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS,
REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND FUTURE
PROSPECTS

During the year, the Group continued to engage in property related
business and provision of horticultural services. The decrease in
turnover by 27% was mainly due to the decrease in revenue from
the sale of properties in Singapore.

The net profit of for the year was mainly contributed by the
valuation gains of approximately HK$102.0 million on the Group's

properties.

As the redevelopment of THE ICON progressed, the Group
devoted more resources in the management and administration of
the project and operating and administrative expenses increased
correspondingly.

Provisional agreements for the sale and purchase of certain units
of THE ICON were entered into by the Group and independent
third parties during the year. The total consideration from the
disposal of these units was approximately HK$625 million.
As at 31 December 2009, deposits received amounted to
approximately HK$124 million. Deposits received are held for the
payment of development costs and repayment of project finance
before completion of the redevelopment. Balance payments of
approximately HK$501 million would be received after completion
of the redevelopment.
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Chairman’s Statement 3 i #t 3

It was announced on 16 November 2009 that the Group entered
into conditional agreement with Hong Fok Corporation Limited,
the ultimate holding company of the Company at the date of the
agreement, for the disposal of the entire interest in Goldease
Investments Limited and the amount owned by the subsidiaries
of Goldease Investments Limited to the Group for a cash
consideration of approximately HK$56.4 million. The disposal was
completed in January 2010. The proceeds have been applied to

repay a revolving loan of the Group.

It was also announced on 16 November 2009 a rights issue of
239,241,098 shares on the basis of one rights share for every
ten shares at HK$0.07 per rights share. The shares issued upon
the rights issue were allotted in December 2009. The proceeds
of approximately HK$16.7 million have been employed to repay a

revolving loan of the Group.

The net asset value of the Group per share as at 31 December
2009 was approximately HK$0.16 (2008: HK$0.13) based on the
2,631,652,084 (2008: 2,392,410,986) shares issued. The increase
was mainly due to the valuation gains on the Group's properties

during the year.

The redevelopment of THE ICON is expected to be completed
in 2010. The Group intends to explore more quality investment
opportunities with a view to strengthening its property portfolio in

order to enhance the shareholders’ value.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

All the Group's funding and treasury activities are centrally
managed and controlled at the corporate level. There is no
significant change in respect of treasury and financing policies from
the information disclosed in the Company’s latest annual report.
The Group's monetary assets and liabilities are denominated and
the Group conducts its business transactions principally in Hong
Kong dollars or Singapore dollars. The Group aims to utilize the fund
for transactions that are denominated in the same currency. The
exchange rate risk of the Group is not considered significant, no

financial instruments for hedging purpose are employed.
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Chairman’s Statement 3 i #t 3

The Group’s working capital requirements are met by committed
undrawn credit facilities. The Group’s banking facilities were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Singapore dollars and
arranged on a floating rate basis. The year-end gearing ratio was
35% (2008: 41 %) based on bank loans less pledged bank deposits
to total equity. The improvement in gearing ratio was mainly due to
the valuation gains of the Group’s properties. As at 31 December
2009, the outstanding bank loans amounted approximately
HK$146 million (2008: HK$130 million). Approximately HK$145
million of these loan facilities were secured by the Group's
properties and bank deposits of approximately HK$487 million
and approximately HK$7,000 respectively. Properties located
in Singapore of approximately HK$49 million were pledged for
certain of the undrawn banking facilities. The Company has
provided guarantees in respect of bank facilities made available to
subsidiaries totaling approximately HK$284 million (2008: HK$318

million).

The following is the maturity profile of the Group's bank

borrowings as of 31 December 2009:

Within 1 year 100%

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

| take this opportunity to express my gratitude to my colleagues
on the Board and the staff members of the Group for their strong
support and valuable contribution.

Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 February 2010
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Corporate Governance Report 3% %

Year ended 31 December 2009 # %~ EE I AFE| - H=—+—H IFFE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of directors of the Company is committed to raising
the standard of corporate governance within the Group in order
to enhance the transparency in disclosure of material information.
The Board strives to implement the best practices embodied in the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules where feasible and as far as

practicable.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions as set out in the Model Code of
the Listing Rules. Following specific enquiry by the Company,
all directors confirmed that they have complied with the required

standards as set out in the Model Code throughout the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board consists of eight members who have appropriate

corporate experience.

Of the eight directors, five are non-executive. Four of the non-
executive directors are deemed to be independent by definition of
the Listing Rules.

Guidelines are established which specify certain material transactions
that require the Board's approval which include mergers and
acquisitions, divestments and major capital expenditure.

The Board supervises the management of the business and affairs
of the Company and the Group. Apart from its statutory duties,
the Board reviews and approves the Company’s and the Group's
strategic plans, key operational initiatives, major investments and
funding decisions, annual business plans, reviews the financial
performance of the Company and the Group and evaluates the
performance and compensation of senior management personnel.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Board has separate and independent access to management
and the company secretary. Management provides the Board with
reports of the Company'’s and the Group's performance, financial
position and prospects, and these are reviewed by the Board at
Board meeting. Directors may obtain independent professional
advice in furtherance of their duties at the Company’s and the
Group's expense.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Under Code A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick is both the
chairman of the Board as well as the Group's chief executive
officer ("CEO")/managing director. Given the size and that the
Company's and the Group’s current business operations and
administration have been relatively stable and straightforward, the
Board is satisfied that one person is able to effectively discharge
the duties of both positions. However, going forward, the Board
will review from time to time the need to separate the roles of the
chairman and the CEOQ if the situation warrants it.

BOARD MEMBERSHIP

The Board does not have a nomination committee as the Board
has been relatively stable with low turnover in the past few years.
However, if the need arises, the Board as a whole, will decide on
the nomination and appointment of new directors.

Details of the directors’ qualifications, directorships and other
particulars are set out on page 24.

Under Code A.4.2, every director should be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. The Company's
Bye-law 87(1) states that the chairman of the Board and/or
the managing director of the Company shall not be subject to
retirement by rotation and shall not be counted in determining
the number of directors to retire in each year. In the opinion of
the Board, the continuity of leadership role of the chairman is
important for the stability of the Company and is considered
beneficial to the growth of the Company. The Board is of the view
that the chairman should not be subject to retirement by rotation

at the present time.
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BOARD MEMBERSHIP (CONTINUED)

Under Code A.4.1, non-executive directors should be appointed
for a specific term, subject to re-election. Non-executive directors
of the Company are not appointed for a specific term although
they are subject to retirement and rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting. Under the Company’s Bye-laws, except
for the chairman of the Board and/or the managing director of the
Company, each director is effectively appointed under a term of
not more than three years.

REMUNERATION POLICY

Employees (including directors) are remunerated according
to their performance and working experience with reference
to prevailing market conditions. On top of basic salaries,
discretionary bonus and share options may by granted to eligible
employee by reference to the individual's performance. In
addition, the Group also provides social security benefits to its
staff such as mandatory provident fund scheme in Hong Kong.

Under Code B.1, a remuneration committee should be established
with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its
authority and duties. A majority of the members of the remuneration
committee should be independent non-executive directors.

The Board has not established a remuneration committee. The
Board conducts an informal assessment of the individual director’s
contribution. No director decides his or her own remuneration.
Details of directors’ remuneration for the year are set out in note
7 to the financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises four independent non-executive
directors. Two of the committee members have financial

management experience.

The audit committee has full access to and co-operation of
the management. The committee also has discretion to invite
any director or executive officer to attend its meetings and is
assured of adequate resources to enable it to discharge its
function properly. CCIF CPA Limited, the external auditors have
unrestricted access to the audit committee.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The audit committee meets periodically with management and the

auditors of the Company to discuss and review:

(a) the annual and interim financial statements to shareholders

before submission to the Board for adoption;

(b)  the Company’s and Group’s accounting policies and system
of internal controls;

(c) the audit plan of the Company's external and internal

auditors;

(d)  the results of the external and internal auditors’ examination
and their evaluation of the Company’s and the Group's

internal control system;
(e)  the independence and objectivity of the external auditors;

(f)  the assistance given by the Company’s and the Group's
officers to the external and internal auditors; and

(g) interested person transactions.

Under Code C.3.3, the audit committee should have the duties
to be primary responsible for making recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of

resignation or dismissal of that auditor.

The recommendation on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
of the external auditors, and any questions of resignation or
dismissal of that auditor of the Company is made by the Board to

the audit committee for approval.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS AT BOARD AND
BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The Board holds meetings on a regular basis during the year to
review the Company’s and the Group's operations and financial
results. Details of attendance of the directors at the Board

meetings, audit committee and other meetings are as follows. T e
Independent board
Board Audit committee committee
£ ENZEE BUESZEE
Number of Number of Number of
meetings Attendance  meetings Attendance  meetings Attendance
BENE  LERE  EBRE LRRE gER¥  LRRY
Executive directors BITES
Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick BUALE 10 10 3 N/A 1 N/A
(Chairman of the Board) (EZetR) TER Tam
Mr. Cheong Kim Pong BeBELE 10 10 3 N/A 1 N/A
TR TER
Mr. Cheong Sim Eng BUKEE 10 10 3 N/A 1 N/A
TR TER
Non-executive directors FHiTES
Madam Lim Ghee # E&t 10 NA 3 N/A 1 N/A
TR TR TER
Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng FRHTL 10 N/A 3 N/A 1 N/A
(alternate to Madam Lim Ghee) (MEZLZBTES) TER TER Tam
Independent non-executive directors ~ BUFEHTES
Mr. Lai Hing Chiu, Dominic PEREE 10 3 3 3 1 1
(Chairman of audit committee) (BZEEER)
Mr. Kan Fook Yee oy 10 4 3 3 1 1
Mr. Chan Yee Hoi, Robert RNERE 10 4 3 3 1 1
Mr. Leung Wing Ning DKERE 10 2 3 1 1 1

(appointed on 11 May 2009) (R-ZENFRLA+-BEZT)
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2009,
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group at the date and of the Group's results and cash
flows for the year then ended and are properly prepared on the going
concern basis in accordance with the statutory requirements and
accounting standards.

The statement of the auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Company is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on page
28.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
For the year ended 31 December 2009, the auditors of the

Company and its subsidiaries would receive approximately
HK$445,000 (2008: HK$463,000) for audit and audit related
services, HK$57,000 (2008: HK$49,000) for tax services and
HK$595,000 (2008: HK$67,000) for other services.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Company’s system of

internal control.

To facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency of operations and
to ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations, the
Group emphasizes on the importance of a sound internal control
system which is also indispensable for mitigating the Group's risk
exposure. The Group’s system of internal control is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage and eliminate risks of failure

in operational systems and fulfillment of the business objectives.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The internal control system is reviewed on an ongoing basis by
the Board in order to make it practical and effective in providing
reasonable assurance in relation to protection of material assets
and identification of business risks. The Board is satisfied that,
based on information furnished to it and on its own observations,

the present internal controls of the Group are satisfactory.

The Group is committed to the identification, monitoring and
management of risks associated with its business activities and
has implemented a practical and effective control system which
includes a defined management structure with limits of authority,
a sound cash management system and periodic review of the

Group's performance by the Audit Committee and the Board.

The Board has conducted review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control and is of the view that the system
of internal control adopted for the year ended 31 December
2009 is sound and is effective to safeguard the interests of the

shareholders’ investment and the Company’s assets.
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The directors herein present their annual report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company consists of investment
holding. Details of the principal activities of the principal

subsidiaries are set out in note 14 the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The profit and cash flows of the Group for the year ended 31

December 2009 and the state of affairs of the Company and the
Group at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages
31 to 142.

DIVIDENDS

No interim dividend was paid and the directors do not recommend

the payment of a final dividend.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and minority
interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set out

below.

EFZgRURERE_ZTEZEAF+A
=t BLFEZEREFERSERARA
EAREE 2 REZIEREK ©

EX-$ 2
ARFZEBEHARALR - TEHBA
Az EEEB 2 A ERRIBRRM T4 -

W B R
AEEHE_TENFTA=1T—HILF
EZEMNEASRERARREAEBNZ
BB RREREINBEEFE 1428 285
|k -

JBE R
ek AR B E RN - EETRBIEM R

RS

YU 05 R 2
AEEBIRAM ML REREE &

BEROBERESHENT -
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RESULTS *48
Year ended 31 December
BE+-—HA=t+—-BLEE
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
“ETNE ZEBENF ZEELF ZEERF —ETIHF
(restated)
(&)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FET FiEx FET FEx
Turnover e 35,667 48,533 29,339 26,169 128,349
Profit/(loss) before BrEATR R,
taxation (F58) 85,814 34,290 (311,249) 154,587 140,306
Income tax (expense)/credit  FiiEH: (S2), /K% (144) 5,505 (1,021) (4,055) (28,244)
Profit/(loss) before Rt DEIRFRER
minority interests AR (&) 85,670 39,795 (312,270) 150,532 112,062
Minority interests DER R R - - - - 3,069
Profit/(loss) attributable &y
to shareholders H@F(E1R) 85,670 39,795 (312,270) 150,532 115,131
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND MINORITY INTERESTS B - B KA RN 2%
As at 31 December
R+t=A=+—H
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
“EFNE ZEENF ZE2TLF ZEERFE —ZTTHF
(restated)
(&%)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FET FTET FHET FBT
Total assets BEE 717,697 460,849 449,979 2,641,002 2,406,180
Total liabilities BAar (297,636)  (141,065)  (169,330)  (756,712)  (713,620)
Minority interests DR R - - - - -
Net assets BESFE 420,061 319,784 280,649 1,884,290 1,692,560
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FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in the fixed assets of the Group are set out
in note 13 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year, together with the reasons therefor, are set out in note 23 to

the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing

shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 23 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated summary statement of

changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31st December 2009, the Company's reserves available for
distribution calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) amounted to
approximately HK$142,670,000 (2008: HK$87,688,000).

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group has not made any charitable
contributions (2008: HK$61,000).

Dl i ¢
AEHETEELE
113 °

FHIE NI IR

JBe A
FRAARBRA 2 &
BRI RRMFL23 -

HEEREY A

i S D B i
ARTZARMAKERE AP MR E
AR T AR L ) P B R SR S T T
2 BB -

o
FRARRBARAKEZ FHEEHFBHNE
BRERM T 23 RS a B SR RE

W 43 kil
R-ZZAE+_A=+—80 BEEREZ
—AN—FREEGEER]) sTEZ A REZ
A IR 2 142,670,0008 70 ( —EF
J\£E : 87,688,000/87T) °

B
FRAAEETEEZEBRI(ZZETNE:
61,000/87T) °
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest
customers accounted for 86% (2008: 90%) of the total sales
for the year and sales to the largest customer included therein
amounted to 29% (2008: 45%).

Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for
86% (2008: less than 30%) of the total purchases for the year and
purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted to
54%.

As far as the directors are aware, neither the directors, their
associates, nor those shareholders which to the knowledge of the
directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital had
any interest in the five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
this report were:—

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:—
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick
Cheong Kim Pong

Cheong Sim Eng

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:—

Kan Fook Yee

Lai Hing Chiu, Dominic

Chan Yee Hoi, Robert

Leung Wing Ning (appointed on 11 May 2009)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:—
Lim Ghee
Cheong Hooi Kheng (alternate to Madam Lim Ghee)

In accordance with bye-law 87 of the Company’s bye-laws, Mr.
Cheong Kim Pong, Mr. Chan Yee Hoi, Robert and Mr. Kan Fook
Yee will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-

election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considered all of
them to be independent.

Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS
At 31 December 2009, the interests and short positions of

directors and chief executive in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations as
required to be disclosed under and within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") were as

follows:—

(I) LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE

COMPANY:—

R Z R R
EHNEISRIT Y RRBEAGERIEE
B MBAR T LN AMFARR—F
PO 7 S B 1 OREBRME IR 5D T 4% 1E 2 R
Baw-

W B
RZBZNEF+_A=1+—H BEERTE
THRAEBRARRR R EHERR 2D - 18
M REST - HERBEESLBAEED
(TR BRI ) EXV 282 %E Rzt A
FREZEDMRRWT © —

() AL F By B AT BB 2 M AT —

Nature of Number of
Name of directors interest ordinary shares held Percentage
oy EEME FrsEERER Btk
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick $&3##: Interest of spouse 3,736,700 0.14%
BB e (Note 1)
(B&E1)
Cheong Hooi Kheng fEesVEl Beneficial owner 2,200,000 0.08%
BEmEAA (Note 2)
(BtaE2)
Note: BisE -

(1) Madam Helen Zee Yee Ling, the spouse of Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan,
Patrick, was interested in 3,736,700 shares, and as a result, Mr.

Cheong is deemed to be interested in these shares.

(2) Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng's directorship is alternate to Madam Lim
Ghee.

(1) #%@kat SH@cE2RE  »
3,736,700 R &y R kB = - EILE
EEWRARZER DR EEER -

(2) SEBHZEIAMBERLIEEESE -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (CONTINUED) w2 AR (H)
(1)  LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES OF AN ASSOCIATED CORPORATION — HONG () W—HBEAA —MEEETRAY
Fok CorroraTioN LiviteD (“HFC”) (TBRERD) 2B ZER

Number of shares

Name of directors Nature of interest of HFC held Percentage
BEHE E = R EEERAEE ATk
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick Beneficial owner 8,539,454 1.29%
Eieg Emfa A
Interest of spouse 1,237,830 0.19%
iRt
Held by controlled 104,058,803 15.78%
corporation (Note 1)
FRZIEHERRSE (M=E1)
Other 134,537,600 20.40%
EHAtb (Note 2)
(FFaE2)
Cheong Kim Pong Beneficial owner 2,829,178 0.43%
Ee EmEaA
Interest of spouse 553,300 0.08%
iRt
Held by controlled 104,058,803 15.78%
corporation (Note 3)
BRI ERRE (H7E3)
Other 134,537,600 20.40%
EHAtb (Note 4)
(PFteE4)
Cheong Sim Eng Beneficial owner 73,775,300 11.18%
FEECLS BEmEa A
Interest of spouse 257,700 0.04%
iR
Held by controlled 31,263,663 4.74%
corporation (Note b)
BRI ERRE (MH7E5)
Other 134,537,600 20.40%
EHAtb (Note 4)
(FFsE4)
Lim Ghee Other 134,537,600 20.40%
& Hth (Note 6)
CEE)
Cheong Hooi Kheng Beneficial owner 10,569,000 1.60%
Bt BEmEa A
Other 134,537,600 20.40%
At (Note 7)
(BFEE7)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (CONTINUED) w2 HEAR (H)
(1)  LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES OF AN ASSOCIATED CORPORATION — HFC (i) R—RBBEAR—BREEZIBBZ

(CONTINUED) W8 (%)
Notes: BieE
As at 31 December 2009: RZEENF+_A=+—8:

These shares of HFC represented: (i) 72,795,140 shares of HFC
(representing approximately 11.04% of the existing issued share
capital of HFC) held by P.C. Cheong Pte. Ltd., which was 99% owned
by Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick and 1% owned by Mr. Cheong Pin
Chuan, Patrick’s wife, Madam Helen Zee Yee Ling; (i) 25,116,863
shares of HFC (representing approximately 3.81% of the existing
issued share capital of HFC) held by Goodyear Realty Co. Pte. Ltd.,
which was 25% owned by Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick; and (iii)
6,146,800 shares of HFC (representing approximately 0.93% of the
existing issued share capital of HFC) held by Corporate Development
Limited, which was 25% owned by Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick.

Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick's wife, Madam Helen Zee Yee Ling
had 3,397,000 shares of Hong Fok Land International Limited (“HFL").
HFL, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Hong Fok Land Holding
Limited, was interested in 20.4% of the existing issued share capital of
HFC, and HFC was interested in 40.38% of the existing share capital
of Hong Fok Land Holding Limited.

These shares of HFC represented: (i) 72,795,140 shares of HFC
(representing approximately 11.04% of the existing issued share
capital of HFC) held by K.P. Cheong Investments Pte. Ltd., which was
99% owned by Mr. Cheong Kim Pong and 1% owned by Mr. Cheong
Kim Pong's wife, Madam Margaret Choo; (ii) 25,116,863 shares of
HFC (representing approximately 3.81% of the existing issued share
capital of HFC) held by Goodyear Realty Co. Pte. Ltd., which was 25%
owned by Mr. Cheong Kim Pong; and (iii) 6,146,800 shares of HFC
(representing approximately 0.93% of the existing issued share capital
of HFC) held by Corporate Development Limited, which was 25%
owned by Mr. Cheong Kim Pong.

Each of Mr. Cheong Sim Eng and Mr. Cheong Kim Pong had interests
in the issued share capital of HFC, which in turn held 40.38% in
the existing issued share capital of Hong Fok Land Holding Limited,
and Hong Fok Land Holding Limited was interested in 20.4% of the
existing issued share capital of HFC.

ZEBBEERMEER : ()EP.C.
Cheong Pte. Ltd. %8 2 72,795,140 %
BREERMN(EEREERAEC BT
fRAK11.04%) - ERERBREEHES
99% ' M1% RIRERBILEZZFR
#¥ LA (i) B Goodyear Realty
Co. Pte. Ltd #%4225,116,863 %1%
BEERN(ERBEEERACETR
AN#381%) HPEBRBRELEHESR
25% : M (iiijf Corporate Development
Limited A& 2 6,146,800 & 17 &

BH(EBREREERACETRAEAY
0.93%) ' HRERBLEHESE25% ©

ERMBREECETRARZLIES
Hong Fok Land International Limited
(THFLJ)3,397,000/&f% {5 » HFLi& B HE
&M EB A" Hong Fok Land Holding
Limited R BREXEBRE B EHITRA
204% FHAEEZR  BEEEIR
Hong Fok Land Holding Limited}8 52
BITIRAN40.38% FHBRER -

ZEBBEERMEER : (VAK.P.
Cheong Investments Pte. Ltd. &
272,795,140 % 36 18 B % I 1n (16 %
BEERBEETRAL11.04%)
HP@ESBAERmRAI9%  KAHEL
T(EEBEEEZEZF)HEB 1% (i)
/i Goodyear Realty Co. Pte. Ltd ¥
5 225116,863K B &E XK MH (A
BEEXEBRAEHITREL3.81%) -
HPESELEHEEF25%  K(iii) A
Corporate Development Limited ##&
26,146,800 RIGEE XM M (IHBRE
¥R BEHTRAL0.93%) » HhiE
SIS ERA 25% ©

WL REBS B AT ARB
¥OBITRAPHEAES  MBEEE
M Hong Fok Land Holding Limited 28
BEETRARITH40.38% 1z -
Hong Fok Land Holding Limited 735 4&
BEERBOEITRA204% P HEAER ©
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

(1)  LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES OF AN ASSOCIATED CORPORATION — HFC

(CONTINUED)

Notes:(continued)

5. These shares of HFC represented: (i) 25,116,863 shares of HFC
(representing approximately 3.81% of the existing issued share capital
of HFC) held by Goodyear Realty Co. Pte. Ltd., which was 25% owned
by Mr. Cheong Sim Eng; and (ii) 6,146,800 shares of HFC (representing
approximately 0.93% of the existing issued share capital of HFC) held
by Corporate Development Limited, which was 25% owned by Mr.
Cheong Sim Eng.

6. Madam Lim Ghee was a director of Hong Fok Land Investment
Limited of which Hong Fok Land Holding Limited was a subsidiary,
and Hong Fok Land Holding Limited was interested in 20.4% of the
existing issued share capital of HFC.

7. Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng had 2,000,000 shares of HFL. HFL, through
its wholly-owned subsidiary, Hong Fok Land Holding Limited, was
interested in 20.4% of the existing issued share capital of HFC; and
HFC was interested in 40.38% of the existing share capital of Hong
Fok Land Holding Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, none of the
directors and the chief executive of the Company were, under
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, taken to be interested
or deemed to have any other interests or short positions in
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations, that were required to be entered into the
register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO
or were required to be notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted
on 15 April 2002 whereby the directors of the Company are
authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees of the Group,
including directors of any company in the Group, to take up options
at nil consideration to subscribe for shares of the Company. The
options vest from the date of grant and are then exercisable within
a period of not more than ten years. Each option gives the holder
the right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.
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225,116,863 B 1E E %X K 1H (5%
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HAP @A AERHB25%  R(i)H
Corporate Development Limited #H&
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BRI EG 25% ©

6. 3 L+ AHong Fok Land Investment
LimitedHf B 2 A Hong Fok Land
Holding Limited Z# % + & Hong Fok
Land Holding Limited B2 E %R A
BB 1TIRAN20.4% G S ©

7. SEEIM Z - #EAHFL 2,000,0000% i%
%+ HFLEEBE 2 &AW B2 FlHong Fok
Land Holding Limited B2 E %8
BCBEITRA204% R HEEER M
JEfEE 28 Hong Fok Land Holding
Limited B /5 iR 74X 40.38% Az ©
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Apart from as disclosed under the sections headed “Directors’
interests” and “Share option schemes” above, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Company’s directors, their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 27 to the financial statements, there
were no contracts of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest subsisted at the end of year or at any time
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

At 31 December 2009, interests of directors in competing
business of the Group were as follows:

fed YN iEa v
BEXTESEZERE ] K BRES ] maEnE
HZ WEIN  RRBHEEAH B R RRAE
FEVESEEMNLH  BLARFERNE
= RESEZEBRFHERD TR T
LAIEB AR R B RAEMEMEA B2
MREHFMEFHE ©

AR A Z A

RS IRRMAE 27 IR EESN - BUERI IR
FRAFATAFEER - AT HEEM
MEBRABARITNIREREMEBEN " B
ARRIEEHAEA D 2R -

A I T R A

R-ZFZEANFT-_A=1t—0 EFRNEX
SEBRHF ZEBTRE 2R

Name of Nature of
Name of directors company competing business Nature of interest
BENE NEERE BREEBZME ERtE
Cheong Kim Pong HFC Property-related business As a director and shareholder
EEE BREHE LE IS REBERRE

Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick HFC

Property-related business

As a director and shareholder

§Ei iz ERE R MERBER REFERRE
HFL Property-related business As a director and the
HFL LEVEIE i spouse of a shareholder
REZRBRR 2B
Cheong Sim Eng HFC Property-related business As a director and shareholder
fEpet ] EEE R MEREER REFERRE
Cheong Hooi Kheng HFC Property-related business As a director and shareholder
EE BREHE EEIE L REBERRE
HFL Property-related business As a director and shareholder
HFL LEIEE L REZRRE
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND EX Y3 92N Y Ed £

OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS

At 31 December 2009, the following persons (not being directors RZFEZERF+ZA=+—8" T AL
(ARFEBEFREETHABRINRZBEAR
AIRIR 38 5 R A E 1501 8 336 14 2 3 E FT 17

B ZEBRMATCERR AR R Z B 5l B A

or chief executive of the Company) had an interest in the following
long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336

of the SFO. Mz EP AR -
Capacity Number of shares held Percentage
Name of shareholder et #HE e E BAtt
HFC BRE! Held by controlled corporation 1,652,910,365 62.81%
BRI EERE (Note 1)
(Fzt1)
First Strategy Investments Limited First Strategy Investments Limited Beneficial owner 628,746,775 23.89%
ERAEAA
HFL HFL Held by controlled corporation 628,746,775 23.89%
BB AR (Note 2)
(M3x2)
Barragan Trading Corp. Barragan Trading Corp. Beneficial owner 285,312,566 10.84%
ERAEAA
Praise Time Co Limited Praise Time Co Limited Beneficial owner 136,000,000 5.17%
ERERA

Notes:

HFC was deemed to have the same beneficial interests as its wholly owned
subsidiary, Hong Fok Corporation (H.K.) Limited (“"HFCHK"), did in the issued
share capital of the Company by virtue of HFC's interest in HFCHK. HFCHK
was deemed to have the same beneficial interests as its wholly owned
subsidiary, Hong Fok Enterprises Limited (“HFE"), did in the issued share
capital of the Company by virtue of HFCHK's interest in HFE. HFE was
deemed to have the same beneficial interests as its wholly owned subsidiary,
Hong Fok Corporation Limited (“HFC Cayman”), did in the issued share capital
of the Company by virtue of HFE's interest in HFC Cayman. HFC Cayman
was directly interested in 976,720,587 shares of the Company. In addition,
HFCHK was directly interested in 47,443,003 shares of the Company. HFCHK
beneficially owned approximately 40.38% of the issued share capital of
HFL and was deemed to have the same beneficial interests as HFL did in
628,746,775 shares of the Company.

HFL was deemed to have the same beneficial interests as its wholly owned
subsidiary, Hong Fok Land Asia Limited ("HFLA"), did in the share capital of
the Company by virtue of HFL's interests in HFLA. HFLA was deemed to have
the same beneficial interests as its wholly owned subsidiary,First Strategy
Investments Limited, did in the issued share capital of the Company by virtue
of HFLA's interest in First Strategy Investments Limited.
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B)ERAB(DBREERB]) 2 - U8
REENARARIDEITRAMER 2 BER#ES
WRARBEREXEEMEBEMER - AR
REERERAEZENBRARBERESER
AR ([BEE D) 2w HUBREERERN
ANBBBRITRANES 2 B 1E AE
BEREHEAEER - AR EREIRBE
2 &M EAF Hong Fok Corporation Limited
([HFC Caymanl) z#z= « HUBRRE ZHNAR
RIBBITRAFMBEEZER ER R AEHFC
Cayman fi#EE &R - HFC Cayman B
B AR RA T 976,720,687 WAL 1D 2 ko LN
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EBTRALNL038%  MEREEXRBR
628,746,775 AN R AR PR 2 BIX
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MR HFLIE B E2 &K E AR Hong Fok Land
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Save as disclosed above, no other person was recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as
having an interest or short position in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as at 31 December 2009.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the year.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Save as disclosed in note 30 to the financial statements, there was
no significant event subsequent to the balance sheet date as at 31
December 2009.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed amount of public float during the year
and up to the date of this report as required under the Listing

Rules.

AUDITORS

CCIF CPA Limited retire and a resolution for their reappointment
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 February 2010

BrEX )’TEZEE%QI\* R-FFAF+=A
=t— B ZRAXFREESLBEED
5233 MZ%E:EP)’TT?EZ?E;,EH%PME% 3

T A AR A T 2 BAD R AR AR £ o
B RAR -

N L~ oA O Jl A A )b 2R

RRRREEMMBEARRFARERA
HE LB ERIARR EHES

iSRRI

MBI BEIHMEMAIOMBEEIN RZTE
NE+ZA=1T—H HEEXFEEHESE
18 o

&%%&ﬁ
BRBEBARARRIAIRAFRAEGSZER - REBESM

I $’AETE$¢W&%61$#E% HHIE 4+
ETRARE 2 ARFFIEIKF ©

23]
REBEMEBMAERABDNTHEER &
A RTZRRBFAE LHRERER
BHEE R AR R 2 R BAD ©

REREFEE

Annual Report 2009 —FFJUAFEEH

23



24

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies # 3¢ & i S 4 #LA B J§i I

DIRECTORS
Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick, aged 60, is the chairman and

managing director of the Company. Mr. Cheong is a member of
the Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He joined the
Group in 1991 and was appointed a director of the Company in
1996. He has over 37 years' experience in property development.
He is a director of the Company’s substantial shareholder, Hong
Fok Corporation Limited (“HFC").

Mr. Cheong Kim Pong, aged 67, is an executive director of
the Company. Mr. Cheong joined the Group in 1991 and was
appointed a director of the Company in 1996. He has over 46
years' experience in construction management and real estate
development. He is a director of the Company’s substantial
shareholder, HFC.

Mr. Cheong Sim Eng, aged 48, is an executive director of the
Company. Mr. Cheong graduated from the Chaminade University
of Honolulu with a Bachelor of Arts degree. He joined the Group
in 1991 and was appointed a director of the Company in 1996. He
has over 24 years' experience in the construction industry. He is a
director of the Company’s substantial shareholder, HFC.

Mr. Kan Fook Yee, SBS, aged 73, is an independent non-executive
director and a member of the audit committee of the Company. He
is a barrister at law, a Fellow Member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors as well as a Fellow Member of the Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators. He was appointed an independent non-
executive director of the Company in 1998. In addition, Mr. Kan
is an adviser to the Heung Yee Kuk, a statutory advisory body
established under the Heung Yee Kuk Ordinance (Chapter 1097
of the Laws of Hong Kong). He is an independent non-executive
director of Synergis Holdings Limited, the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. In February 2009,
Mr. Kan ceased to be chairman and non-executive director of

Henderson Sunlight Assets Management Limited.
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DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Lai Hing Chiu, Dominic, aged 62, is an independent non-
executive director and a member of the audit committee of the
Company. He is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong and has also
been admitted as a solicitor in England, Australia and Singapore.
He joined the Group in 1994 and was appointed an independent
non-executive director of the Company in 1996. He has over 37
years’ experience as a solicitor. Mr. Lai is an independent non-
executive director of NWS Holdings Limited, Midas International
Holdings Limited and Oriental Press Group Limited, the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chan Yee Hoi, Robert, aged 60, is an independent non-
executive director and a member of the audit committee of
the Company. He joined the Group and was appointed an
independent non-executive director of the Company in 2004.
He graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor
of Social Science degree. He has over 30 years’ experience
in corporate restructuring, corporate finance, capital markets,
direct investment and asset management. Mr. Chan held senior
positions in various American banks in Hong Kong and fund
management companies.

Mr. Leung Wing Ning, aged 62, is an independent non-executive
director and a member of the audit committee of the Company.
He joined the Group and was appointed an independent non-
executive director of the Company in 2009. He was educated
at Stanford University, California and New York University, New
York where he obtained a Bachelor of Science (Mechanical
Engineering) and an Master of Business Administration degree
respectively. He has over 30 years' experience in senior
management positions in international trades and in banking and
finance. He retired from Hang Seng Bank Limited in 2007. He is
an independent non-executive director of Wing On International
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.

Madam Lim Ghee, aged 98, is a non-executive director of the
Company. She joined the Group in 1991 and was appointed a
non-executive director of the Company in 1996. Madam Lim Has
resigned as a non-executive director of the Company'’s substantial
shareholder, HFC in April 2009. Madam Lim Ghee is the mother of
Messrs. Cheong Kim Pong, Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick, Cheong
Sim Eng, Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng and Ms. Cheong Puay Kheng.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies # 3¢ & i S 4 #LA B J§i I

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Tsui Yeung Kun, Andrew, aged 54, is the director of the

property development division of the Group. Mr. Tsui graduated
from Christian Brothers College in the United States with a
Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting and Economics. He
joined the Group in 1995 and has over 6 years' experience in the
management of investment funds and 11 years’ experience in
equity research and stock broking activities in Hong Kong. Mr. Tsui
is Mrs. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick’s brother.

Mr. Cheong Tze Hong, Marc, aged 37, is the director of the
business development division of the Group. Mr. Cheong holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting from the University of
Southern California in the United States of America and a Master
of Business Administration degree from the University of Chicago
Graduate School of Business. He joined the Group in 2000 and has
over 3 years' experience in the merchant banking field and 9 years’

experience in business development.

Mr. Cheong Tze Hian, Howard, aged 35, is the director of the
project management division of the Group. Mr. Cheong holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting from the University of
Southern California in the United States of America. He joined
the Group in 2004 and has over 3 years' experience in the private

equity field and 5 years’ experience in project management.

Mr. Cheong Tze Hong, Marc and Cheong Tze Hian, Howard are the
sons of Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick.

Ms. Cheong Puay Kheng, aged 55, is the general manager of
the Group. Ms. Cheong graduated from Armstrong College of
Berkeley in the United States of America with a Bachelor of
Science degree. She joined the Group in 1993 and has over 24
years' experience in the planning, organising and control of office

administration and personnel management.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Mr. Cheong Aik Yen, Roy, aged 44, is the senior manager of

business promotion of the Group. Mr. Cheong graduated from
Western New England College in Massachusetts with a Bachelor
of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering. He joined the Group
in 2002 and has 3 years’ experience in the merchant banking
field. He is the personal assistance to directors of the Company’s
substantial shareholder, HFC. Mr. Cheong is the son of Mr.
Cheong Kim Pong.

Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng, aged 56, is the financial advisor of
the Group. Ms. Cheong holds a Bachelor of Science degree in
Business Administration from the California State University,
Hayward and a Master of Business Administration degree from
the Chaminade University of Honolulu. She joined the Group
in 1991 and has over 28 years' experience in the construction
industry. She is a director of the Company’s substantial
shareholder, HFC. Ms. Cheong was appointed a non-executive
director of the Company, alternate to Madam Lim Ghee, in 2005.

Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng and Ms. Cheong Puay Kheng are sisters
of Messrs. Cheong Kim Pong, Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick and
Cheong Sim Eng.

Mr. Chan Yuen King, Paul, aged 33, is the project manager of
the property development division of the Group. Mr. Chan holds
a Bachelor of Arts degree in Architectural Studies, Master of
Science degree in Construction Project Management, and a
Master Degree in Landscape Architecture from the University
of Hong Kong. He also holds a Bachelor of Law degree from the
Manchester Metropolitan University. Mr. Chan is a chartered
builder and has 11 years’ experience in the construction industry
with 7 years' experience in project management. He joined the
Group in 20083, left in March 2007 and returned in October 2007.

Mr. Tong Kwok Wai, Anthony, aged 37, is the senior quantity
surveyor of the Group. He is a Member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors, The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and a
Registered Professional Surveyor. He holds a Bachelor Degree
in Quantity Surveying from The City University of Hong Kong and
a Master Degree in Construction Project Management from the
University of Hong Kong. He joined the Group in 2008 and has over
13 years' quantity surveying experience. Mr. Tong has worked in

construction cost consultant firm, contractor and developer.
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Independent Auditor’s Report 18 . 4% 3 fili 8t

CCIF

CCIF CPA LIMITED

34/F The Lee Gardens
33 Hysan Avenue
Causeway Bay Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF WINFOONG INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Winfoong International Limited (the “Company”) set out on
pages 31 to 142, which comprise the consolidated and company
balance sheets as at 31 December 2009, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making

accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2009 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

CCIF CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 26 February 2010

Yau Hok Hung
Practising Certificate Number P04911
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Consolidated Income Statement £35S U8R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; % ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2009 2008
Note “ETNE —ZTNE
BifzE HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T
Turnover = 3 3 35,667 48,533
Cost of sales SHEMAR (30,428) (44,579)
Gross profit E 5,239 3,954
Valuation gains on investment property KREMEHERE 13 - 75,501
Fair value gain on transfer of investment KR EMEEZHRS
properties to properties under development Mz AT EE 13 101,990 -
Other revenue Hiolizs 4 210 153
Other net (loss)/income Hit (F1B) WA FE 4 (1,136) 510
Reversal of write-down/(write-down) BFEMRER/ (HR)
of inventories 16(c) 2,029 (25,908)
Operating and administrative expenses BERITHAY (27,164) (19,741)
Profit from operations FS ey 81,168 34,469
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMNBAR W 28 4,940 -
Finance costs REMA 5(a) (294) (179)
Profit before taxation BB AR 5 85,814 34,290
Income tax (expensel/credit Frishi (i) /B% 6(a) (144) 5,505
Profit for the year REGTH 85,670 39,795
Attributable to: MU BELE
Equity shareholders of the Company ADAEREFAA 9 85,670 39,795
Minority interests DERRRES _ B
Profit for the year EREF 85,670 39,795
Earnings per share FREA 10
Basic BA HK cents 3.378{ll  HK cents 1.56 L
Diluted e HK cents 3.3778fll  HK cents 1.56 74l
The notes on pages 39 to 142 form part of these financial FI0FEN142 B 7 MBI S B oK 2 —
statements. B o
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income 535 2 WM 32 %

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4FA " H=+—H IFF¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

2009 2008
ZEThEF —TTNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit for the year FrEy 85670 39,795
Other comprehensive income/ FREMEREKE
(expenses) for the year (B%)
(after tax and reclassification CIES
adjustments) DERERE)
Exchange differences on translating MEFINERZEHZER -
foreign operations (net of nil tax): MERIIE 2 FEE ¢
— Exchange differences on —BEEINEB AR
translation of financial M mkCELER
statements of overseas
subsidiaries 2,681 (280)
— Reclassification adjustments —FABHEZBINER
relating to foreign operations 2 EHDERAE
disposed of during the year (4,891) -
(2,210) (280)
Available-for-sale securities: net AIHHEES
movement in the fair value N ERE 2855
reserve (net of nil tax): 1A FEE
— Changes in fair value —FARNBERZ
recognised during the year NEEED) - (380)
- Reclassification adjustments —REEERRZ
for amounts transferred SR BN ERE
to profit or loss — impairment —REEE (H:E4)
losses (note 4) 70 -
70 (380)
e (2140) (660
Total comprehensive income FAREWEAEE
for the year 83,530 39,135
Attributable to: PATRELL
Equity shareholders of the AR
Company BB A 83,530 39,135
Minority interests DR - -
Total comprehensive income FARAZTHEWE
for the year 4z 83,530 39,135

The notes on pages 39 to 142 form p

statements.
Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7
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Consolidated Balance Sheet £5: &% i fi {5 %

As at 31 December 2009 3 ~EENFES - H="+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2009 2008
Note —EENEF —ETNEF
BisE HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTAT FET FAT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Fixed assets ElEEE 13
— Investment property —EME 320 355,320
- Other property, plant and —HtE - W5
equipment R 2,813 4,116
— Interests in leasehold land —REEMENET
held for own use under KEEBRZEE
operating leases i 428 440
3,561 359,876
Pledged bank deposits DHEMBITER 18(a) 7 4
Other financial assets HemERE 15 4,780 1,610
8,348 361,490
Current assets nBEE
Inventories 3 16 487,398 94,531
Trade and other receivables BoREMBYIEER 17 123,502 2,341
Tax recoverable ALRETRIE 22(a) - 1
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBeEEY 18(a) 25,016 2,486
635,916 99,359
Assets of disposal group DEAFEHEZ
classified as held for sale HEMREE 19 73,433 -
709,349 99,359
Current liabilities ik JA=
Trade and other payables B REMENERE 20 150,168 9,937
Bank borrowings RITEH 27 145,741 235
Tax payables JEST A 22(a) - 504
295,909 10,676
Liabilities of disposal group DEARFELE
classified as held for sale ZHEERIAE 19 1,286 -
297,195 10,676
Net current assets RBEEFE 412,154 88,683

Annual Report 2009 —ZFFJUEER 33




Consolidated Balance Sheet 54 % i f1 {5 3%

As at 31 December 2009 i ~EFENFE S H="+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)
2009 2008
Note —EENEF ZTTNF
(i3 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THAT FTHET FET FAET
Total assets less current BEERRBERE
liabilities 420,502 450,173
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Bank borrowings AT 21 441 130,306
Deferred tax liabilities FEERERE 22(b) - 83
441 130,389
NET ASSETS BEEFHE 420,061 319,784
CAPITAL AND RESERVES PR fk
Share capital [N 23(b) 131,582 119,620
Reserves & 288,479 200,164
Total equity attributable to KATREREFEA
equity shareholders PEfLRER AR5
of the Company 420,061 319,784
Minority interests LPERRER = -
TOTAL EQUITY MR 420,061 319,784

BEEeN _E-ZEFE_A-_+NAHERRE

A

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26

February 2010. RT3 o

Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick Cheong Kim Pong

Director Director

= EF

The notes on pages 39 to 142 form part of these financial EI9F 142 E 2T BRI F B HEK 2 —
statements. o e
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Balance Sheet & j& £ 15 3%

As at 31 December 2009 3 ~EENFES - H="+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LA#TCFHE)
2009 2008
Note —EBENE —ETN\F
M aE HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THAT THET FET FET
Non-current assets FRBERE
Investments in subsidiaries RIBRRZIZE 14 1 1
Other financial assets HitSREE 15 3,500 -
3,501 1
Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables 25 R EMEAERE 17 261,409 207,939
Cash and cash equivalents ReEPReFEY 18(a) 24,220 6
285,629 207,945
Current liabilities af
Trade and other payables % HA R ERIA 20 9,642 517
Net current assets MEEEFE 275,987 207,428
NET ASSETS EEFE 279,488 207,429
CAPITAL AND RESERVES PRAK: i
Share capital [ 23(b) 131,582 119,620
Reserves @1 147,906 87,809
TOTAL EQUITY arER 279,488 207,429

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26

February 2010.

Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick

IR R
Director

EBEF

The notes on pages 39 to 142 form part of these financial

statements.

Cheong Kim Pong
EEHE
Director

4
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 55 & sz B #

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4FA " H=+—H IFF¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LA#TCFHE)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ARARERE ARILER
Capital
redemp-
tion Fair Minority
Share Share  reserve  Exchange value  Retained interests Total
capital  premium BA  reserve  reserve profits Total 24 equity
hx  REE BEREE EXRE LTERE  REE Bt RREE  SER
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Thr TEr TEr  TEr  TEr TR TEr  TEr iR
At 1 January 2008 RZFE\E-A-H 119,620 - 121 11,876 640 148392 280,649 - 280,649
Profit for the year ERg A - - - - - 39,79% 39,79 - 39,7%
Other comprehensive ERER2ERY
expenses for the year - - - (280) (380) - (660) - (660)
Total comprehensive ER2E(FR)/
[expenses)fincome Yztas
for the year - - - (280) (380)  39,7% 39135 - 39,135
At 31 December 2008 RZFENE
+-A=1-H 119,620 - 121 11,59 260 188187 319,784 - 39,784
At 1 January 2009 RZZENE-A-H 119,620 - 121 11,596 260 188187 319,784 - 319784
Profitfor the year EREHN - - - - - 8600 85670 - 8610
Other comprehensive EMER2E(F)
expenses)income Vi - - - 220 70 - 2040 - 240
for the year
Total comprehensive ER2E(FR)/
[expenses)fincome Iyt
for the year - - - 2,210) 70 8,670 83,530 - 83,530
Shares issued upon kT2 R
rights issue 11,962 4,785 - - - - 16,747 - 16,747
At 31 December 2009 KZEENE
TZA=1-H 131,582 4,785 121 9,386 330 27387 420,061 - 420,061
The notes on pages 39 to 142 from part of the financial FIEN142BEZWEBRIL ST BRET L —
statements. &5 o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement %5453 4im B %K

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; % ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2009 2008
Note —EEREFE ZTTNF
B HK$°000 HK$'000
FBT FAT
Operating activities KR
Cash (used in)/generated from operations &7 (/) EE2IRE 18(b) (3,755) 25,901
Tax paid BRHIA
Hong Kong profits tax refunded EBNERRE 1 7
Singapore income tax paid BTN AT EL (318) (642)
Net cash (used in)/generated from EEKET(ER)EBE
operating activities RneFs® (4,072) 25,266
Investing activities REEE
(Increase)/decrease in (38h0),/ B FRYEIR 1
pledged bank deposits RITIER (3) 6
Payment for purchase of available-for-sale  BE ARt HER T
unlisted debt securities BEH 20 (3,170) -
Payment for purchase of fixed assets BABRTEE 2R (7,280) (8,105)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets & BT B EMSEIR 272 22
Loan repaid by a director of a subsidiary —MIHMEBAEZ
BEEERZER - 490
Loan repaid by a fellow subsidiary —HRRNBAR]
BEZER - 54
Interest received BHFE 96 22
Net outflow of cash and cash HENBARMERE
equivalents in respect of ReRAEEEYD
disposal of subsidiaries R FRE (25) -
Net cash used in investing activities REFENFTEAZIR&F5E (10,110) (7,511)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement %353 4m H#K

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4FA " H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

2009 2008
Note —EERE TINF
B 5T HK$°000 HK$'000
FBT FAT
Financing activities RERE
Increase in amount due to JEN —BHE R R
a related company SRIE 23N - 508
Decrease in amount due to FEAS — AR R /B
a fellow subsidiary RNEFIE B - (302)
Increase in amount due to the ultimate  JEfTERARIEAZ A A
holding company SRIE 2 3N - 146
Increase in amounts due to the R EERE
Company's substantial shareholders FIE 2 38 hN 717 -
Proceeds from rights issue HERFTISIE 16,747 -
Proceeds from over-subscription HARBRERE 2
under rights-issue FriS5RIE 7,468 -
Proceeds from new bank loans REFERITERZ
FiG A 54,195 17,454
Repayment of bank loans BEIRTER (38,554) (38,163)
Interest paid ERFLE (287) (372)
Net cash generated from/(used in) MEEBEE (EH)
financing activities ZIREFRE 40286  (20,729)
Net increase/(decrease) in cashand BEE&RBRESZEY =
cash equivalents i, R ) B4 26,104 (2,974)
Cash and cash equivalents at the RENZRERES
beginning of the year ZEY 2,486 5,485
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EZX& 85/ & 51 (25)
Cash and cash equivalents atthe end RERZBEERRE
of the year ZEY 18(a) 28,641 2,486
The notes on pages 39 to 142 form part of these financial $39F 142 B 2 W srBa i S8R HRE 2 —
statements. =[5 o
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; % ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)

b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. A summary of the significant accounting

policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. Note 2 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting years reflected in these financial

statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2009 comprise the Company and

its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional

currency of the Company.

1. BEEEOE

a)

b)

BB
ZEVBHRERCRIETBU R
ERA(TFEHBHREEN]
oEeREEetm g ([F
BEREAE])EMZMAEE
RzBEMBREER  FE
SRPEA(THFEGERD Rk
2E) FEERARZEHRAR
BREREGH 2 BEREREM
B e ZEMBREANTCHEEA
BARHMERARER LHR
A2 ERIWBERE - TXH#IIAK
SERAZEIZEHABRRZM
2

o

EASHMASEEMBIAHAN
SERAR ARG A ERK
ARERM AL RENET2E
B SHREER - YIRERZS
HASEE@N TRV BRELE
BIF S| MERFIAE €T FEE 2
EETHEEMES - BRENAE
BISRERAN - BEER S H M
FE2-

S e A A o
BE_ZTAF+-_A=+—8
TEENGEAMBRRBIEAR
REREM B LR ([ AE
@) -

RABBBmRIIAEBITINIE M
BRAMBRRBZINGRER
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4FA " H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets are stated at their fair value as

explained in the accounting policies set out below:

- investment property (see note 1(f));

- other buildings (see note 1(g)); and

- financial instruments classified as available-for-

sale securities (see note 1(e)).

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale
are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell (see note 1(u)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

40 Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; % ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

b)

<)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have a significant effect on the
financial statements and major sources of estimation

uncertainty are discussed in note 29.

Subsidiaries and minority interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity
so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing
control, potential voting rights that presently are

exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same
way as unrealised profits but only to the extent that

there is no evidence of impairment.

1. BEEEHEOR (8)

b)

)

S e A A (4

AEBEFERATEMGE RBHR
RIEHFHE - HEEFHAR 2 1&
FEREFLARER 2R
AN %R ERER W5
ERECEACHEZ Y4 IS
HARD - RURE B R R R HAR HE AR
BREAER] °

ERAE MRS LR ER
BELHRFAEEAARZER
[ B X 3 B 7 R K TN REE M
ZEBRBERRBREEAZENH
BT - MR 29 o

i g 2 ) e A I R 2
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EAKEEREEMHREER
RAME AL LR S AN 2555 -
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BEE-

RETE AR ZIRE B ZEH KA
HEEEHKIEAEHAREN
BWwEK - FEARFIREZHEHR
RXHEASERAR G MEE ZE
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4FA " H=+—H IFF¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

<)

Subsidiaries and minority interests (continued)

Minority interests represent the portion of the net
assets of subsidiaries attributable to interests that
are not owned by the Company, whether directly or
indirectly through subsidiaries, and in respect of which
the Group has not agreed any additional terms with
the holders of those interests which would result in
the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of
a financial liability. Minority interests are presented in
the consolidated balance sheet with equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Minority interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
income statement and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between minority interests and the equity

shareholders of the Company.

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed
the minority’s interest in the equity of a subsidiary,
the excess, and any further losses applicable to
the minority, are charged against the Group's
interest except to the extent that the minority has a
binding obligation to, and is able to, make additional
investment to cover the losses. If the subsidiary
subsequently reports profits, the Group’s interest is
allocated all such profits until the minority’s share of
losses previously absorbed by the Group has been

recovered.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 1(i)), unless the investment is classified as held
for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified

as held for sale) (see note 1(u)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; % ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

d)

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a
business combination or an investment in an associate
over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating unit,
or groups of cash-generating units, that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination and
is tested annually for impairment (see note 1(i)). In
respect of associates, the carrying amount of goodwill
is included in the carrying amount of the interest in the
associate and the investment as a whole is tested for
impairment whenever there is objective evidence of

impairment (see note 1(i)).

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of a business
combination is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on

disposal.

1. BEEEHEOR (8)

d)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4FA " H=+—H IFF¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

e)

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group's and the Company’'s policies for
investments in debt and equity securities, other than
investments in subsidiaries, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially
stated at fair value, which is their transaction price
unless fair value can be more reliably estimated
using valuation techniques whose variables include
only data from observable markets. Cost includes
attributable transaction costs, except where
indicated otherwise below. These investments are
subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on
their classification:

(i) Held-to-maturity debt securities

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the
Company have the positive ability and intention
to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-
maturity securities. Held-to-maturity securities
are stated in the balance sheet at amortised cost

less impairment losses (see note 1(i).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; % ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. REEFHEOR (8)
(CONTINUED)
e) Other investments in debt and equity securities e) AU RIB A &N 2 b B
(continued) (%)
(i) Available-for-sale securities (i)  AIMEHEES
Other investments in securities, being those EmMESKRE (ARAIEE
held for non-trading purposes, are classified as BEEA® %)E% BRI
available-for-sale securities. At each balance ERF - RBEZER
sheet date the fair value is remeasured, with D\$TEH#%D/\§¥ﬁ§JFE :
any resultant gain or loss being recognised in Eﬂllﬁt?izﬁﬂ‘éﬁﬁ&

other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the fair value reserve,
except foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from changes in the amortised cost of
monetary items such as debt securities which
are recognised directly in profit or loss. Dividend
income from these investments is recognised
in profit or loss in accordance with the policy set
out in note 1(r)(v) and, where these investments
are interest-bearing, interest calculated using
the effective interest method is recognised in
profit or loss in accordance with the policy set
out in note 1(r)(vi). When these investments are
derecognised or impaired (see note 1(i)), the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from equity
to profit or loss.

B E 2 T U 2 A T RR
RATFEFEZEDTE
VR MR E®IER W
BERFCHENAZEHE
ErER R REBEEE
RERENER - REE
&2 Bk B AIR BR Y 5
1r)(v) FTE 2 BURR B &
KABR WMZERER
R REBMNEEGFE
Z B THIRERMIEE 1(r) (vi)
Pt 2 ISR R 18 5 R ) B8
Bo MR BEBAZSERE
T LARE (RKTEE1G)) -
SRR HE R
,\.ﬂ'qﬁl sl EEtERE
SDEEERE -

ZERERN AN EEAEEEZS
BE 2 BT AR AL E &
N EZERERE Y BER
R -

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date
the Group commits to purchase/sell the investments

or they expire.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4FA " H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

f)

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see
note 1(h)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently
undetermined future use and property that is being

developed for future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet
at fair value, unless they are still in the course of
construction or development at the balance sheet
date and their fair value cannot be reliably determined
at that time. Any gain or loss arising from a change
in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of
an investment property is recognised in profit or
loss. Rental income from investment properties is

accounted for as described in note 1(r)(i).

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted
for as an investment property on a property-by-
property basis. Any such property interest which has
been classified as an investment property is accounted
for as if it were held under a finance lease (see note
1(h)), and the same accounting policies are applied
to that interest as are applied to other investment
properties leased under finance leases. Lease
payments are accounted for as described in note 1(h).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; % ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2)

Other property, plant and equipment

The following properties held for own use are stated
in the balance sheet at their revalued amount, being
their fair value at the date of the revaluation less any

subsequent accumulated depreciation:

- land held under operating leases and buildings
thereon, where the fair values of the leasehold
interest in the land and buildings cannot be
measured separately at the inception of the
lease and the building is not clearly held under an

operating lease (see note 1(h)); and

- buildings held for own use which are situated
on leasehold land, where the fair value of the
building could be measured separately from the
fair value of the leasehold land at the inception of

the lease (see note 1(h)).

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amount of these assets
does not differ materially from that which would be

determined using fair values at the balance sheet date.

The other items of property, plant and equipment are
stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(i)).

1. BEEEHEOR (8)

2)

FefbYy 3k - W3 B it A
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4FA " H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. BEEEEHEOR (8)
(CONTINUED)
g)  Other property, plant and equipment (continued) g) AL - B Bt ()
Changes arising on the revaluation of properties REGFEERMEEEZE
held for own use are generally dealt with in other —REHEMEEREANEE - I
comprehensive income and are accumulated RYEEGHEB I ERANE LR
separately in equity in property revaluation reserve. e EBFIIMERIAT -

The only exceptions are as follows:

-  when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be - WELEBHEL Z3HE
charged to profit or loss to the extent that it EEREAANNER  BEEHE
exceeds the amount held in the reserve in HREZERAIREHE
respect of that same asset immediately prior to EREBEANRECZ2ER
the revaluation; and kR

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be - WELEEHAESK 258
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a FFABEZERK - WUABE—
deficit on revaluation in respect of that same BEELNERBERRA
asset had previously been charged to profit or Sl BB ARTE -
loss.

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant BITHEZME  BEREH#EZ

and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct R BEEMEIRAR EEST

labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs AR M@ - 915 AR RE
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring NRBIE B A K IR1EIE B FTfE it
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate REFHILA - A REE L FIRE

proportion of production overheads and borrowing ftb A B A AN DB B AR (LB 5

costs (see note 1(1)). 1(1) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; % ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2)

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred
from the property revaluation reserve to retained

profits and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives

as follows:

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over their estimated useful lives of

40 years.

- Furniture, equipment and other fixed assets are

depreciated over 5 years.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its

residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4FA " H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

h)  Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as being held under finance leases. Leases
which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases, with the following

exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that
would otherwise meet the definition of
an investment property is classified as
an investment property on a property-
by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if
held under a finance lease (see note 1(f));

and
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; % ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

h)  Leased assets (continued)

0

Classification of assets leased to the Group

(continued)

- land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value of
a building situated thereon at the inception
of the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease.
For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first
entered into by the Group, or taken over

from the previous lessee.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period

in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease term
except where the property is classified as an
investment property (see note 1(f)) or is held for

development for sale (see note 1(j)(ii)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4FA " H=+—H IFF¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

i) Impairment of assets

i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables
Investments in debt and equity securities (other
than investments in subsidiaries: see note 1(i)
(i) and other current and non-current receivables
that are stated at cost or amortised cost or
are classified as available-for-sale securities
are reviewed at each balance sheet date to
determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the

attention of the Group about one or more of the

following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default

or delinquency in interest or principal

payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment

that have an adverse effect on the debtor;

and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity

instrument below its cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; % ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. BEEEHEOR (8)
(CONTINUED)
i)  Impairment of assets (continued) ) AWML ()
i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity 1) FEETE R IR 75 5 14 2 7

Bl JE W I i (]
(%)

EFEEAEREEE A
BATHAEE RERE

securities and other receivables (continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss

is determined and recognised as follows:

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is made
collectively where financial assets carried
at amortised cost share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4FA " H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

i) Impairment of assets (continued)
i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity

securities and other receivables (continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the
asset's carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior

years.

- For available-for-sale securities, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised
in the fair value reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss. The amount of the cumulative
loss that is recognised in profit or loss is
the difference between the acquisition
cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that asset

previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or
loss in respect of available-for-sale equity
securities are not reversed through profit
or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair
value of such assets is recognised in other

comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; % ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. BEEEHEOR (8)
(CONTINUED)
i)  Impairment of assets (continued) ) AWML ()
i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity 1) FEETE R IR 75 5 14 2 7

securities and other receivables (continued)

Impairment losses in respect of available-
for-sale debt securities are reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in profit or

loss.

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade debtors directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in

profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA ICATH)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

i) Impairment of assets (continued)
ii)  Impairment of other assets
Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be
impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer

exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment (other than

properties carried at revalued amounts);

- pre-paid interests in leasehold land
classified as being held under an operating

lease;

- investments in subsidiaries (except for
those classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held

for sale)) (see note 1(u)); and

- goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition, for
goodwill, the recoverable amount is estimated
annually whether or not there is any indication of

impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; % ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LIi#ICq]H)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

i)

Impairment of assets (continued)

ii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e., a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwvill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or
group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs to sell, or value in use, if

determinable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEEN4FA " H =+—H IFF¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

i) Impairment of assets (continued)

ii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill

is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which

the reversals are recognised.

i) Inventories

i)

Horticultural services
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and

net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the standard cost basis
(which approximates the average actual cost)
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and
condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated

costs necessary to make the sale.

58 Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7

1.

EEEEralBOR (50

i) WREWAE (B

1)

R

i)

Al & ()
- RBEREEE
SLETB AN 2 BETN
5 WANRERTER
EEB2 Gt hRA
FeE BRRE
EREETED - BE
ZRBEIET SR
8] o

B [0 7 518 B 1R DA e
B FE AW RTERR
EBEREMECSEEZ
BEREZERR -
BEZBEBRTIRN
R E 2 FE A
ABEHK o

e/
78 AR AR 2 AT 2 3R E
M BIEENE

B TR AR AR BB AR E %
(B4 F 9 BRRBCAS ) 71
B BREBEKAE . gt
RAMAGIF EEERU &
e R EERE AR TELE
LA o

AERFERERTEER
BEPZMEFAER BE
Bt AR AR R A ETT
HEMRZ EMARAFE -



1.

Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4F+ - H=—+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

»

Inventories (continued)

0

ii)

Horticultural services (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as an expense
in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses
of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense

in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Property development

Inventories in respect of property development
activities are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost and net realisable values

are determined as follows:

- Property under development for sale

The cost of properties under development
for sale comprises specifically identified
cost, including the acquisition cost of land,
aggregate cost of development, materials
and supplies, wages and other direct
expenses, an appropriate proportion of
overheads and borrowing cost capitalised
(see note 1(t)). Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price less
estimated costs of completion and costs to

be incurred in selling the property.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEEN4FA " H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

j) Inventories (continued)
ii)  Property development (continued)
- Completed property held for sale

In the case of completed properties
developed by the Group, cost is
determined by apportionment of the total
development costs for that development
project, attributable to the unsold
properties. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price less costs to
be incurred in selling the property. The
cost of completed properties held for sale
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

k) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less
allowance for impairment losses of doubtful debts (see
note 1(i)), except where the receivables are interest-
free loans made to related parties without any fixed
repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at
cost less allowance for impairment losses of doubtful
debts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4F+ - H=—+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

m)

n)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities
measured in accordance with note 1(g)(i), trade and
other payables are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be

immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been

within three months of maturity at acquisition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEEN4FA " H =+—H IFF¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
o) Employee benefits
i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to

p)

defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at

their present values.

it)  Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when, and
only when, the Group demonstrably commits
itself to terminate employment or to provide
benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by
having a detailed formal plan which is without

realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any

adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4F+ - H=—+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

p)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from

unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in the
same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax
loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried
back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEEN4FA " H =+—H IFF¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

p)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences,
the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it
is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse
in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets

and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient

taxable profits will be available.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4F+ - H=—+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. BEEEEHEOR (4)
(CONTINUED)
p)  Income tax (continued) p) DBl ()
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and BVERT 18 45 e N2 SE 0 18 45 64 LA
movements therein, are presented separately from &”‘CPZ“@WJXE a2 7D
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are T o ERELAT 25
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax SME ﬁﬁZIS’AETEJZZK%%ﬁ
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company NIRE A MIBEE TR EEE
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off ZIOEEER - NEWMIBEES G
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the HARHITIE B EEE - MIELER
following additional conditions are met: TEEE A BRI 18 B HE A
- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, - BMAHsHMEEERERE
the Company or the Group intends either to imE @ ARERAEEET
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and SILOFEAREE - A
settle the liability simultaneously; or KREREEREREE
1)
- inthe case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, - *f EXEBREERBEM
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same CMZEBEERBEMRE
taxation authority on either: EZFTT IR R—E

BHBERTRLL -

- the same taxable entity; or T8 Ty AR — B

EL V-7
- different taxable entities, which, in each - HIRANBEML B
future period in which significant amounts R —ERREAR -
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are BRI A& 2 IR
expected to be settled or recovered, intend HEEREENEE
to realise the current tax assets and settle PR EE S - &
the current tax liabilities on a net basis or B FRE R XNEBEAR
realise and settle simultaneously. HeBmEERER
REZ HIBAEESRA
REHERERER -
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEEN4FA " H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. BEEFHEOR (8)
(CONTINUED)
q) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent q) e MR - M RSk
liabilities £
i) Financial guarantees issued i) 2 ISR

Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e., the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee,
the fair value of the guarantee (being the
transaction price, unless the fair value can
otherwise be reliably estimated) is initially
recognised as deferred income within trade and
other payables. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee,
the consideration is recognised in accordance
with the Group's policies applicable to that
category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense
is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition

of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or
loss over the term of the guarantee as income
from financial guarantees issued. In addition,
provisions are recognised in accordance with
note 1(q)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the
Group under the guarantee, and (ii) the amount
of that claim on the Group is expected to exceed
the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee, that is, the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4F+ - H=—+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

q) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

ii)

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities
of uncertain timing or amount when the Group
or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected

to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

1. BEEEHEOR (8)

q)  PrERiZ B - A R AR
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11)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEEN4FA " H =+—H IFF¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

r)  Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be

measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or

loss as follows:

i) Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable. Contingent rentals are

recognised as income in the accounting period in

which they are earned.

ii)  Sale of properties

Revenue arising from the sale of properties held
for sale is recognised upon the later of signing
of the sale and purchase agreement and the
issue of an occupation permit by the relevant
government authorities, which is taken to be
the point in time when the risks and rewards
of ownership of the property have passed to
the buyer. Deposits and instalments received
on properties sold prior to the date of revenue
recognition are included in the balance sheet

under forward sales deposits and instalments

received.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4F+ - H=—+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

r) Revenue recognition (continued)

iii)

v)

vi)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered
which is taken to be the point in time when
the customer has accepted the goods and the
related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes
and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

When the outcome of a construction contract
cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of contract costs

incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.

Management fee income
Management fee income is recognised at the

time when the services are rendered.

Dividends

- Dividend income from unlisted
investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established.

- Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the

investment goes ex-dividend.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEEN4FA " H =+—H IFF¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

s)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet
date. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the transactions. Balance sheet items,
including goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign
operations acquired, are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates at
the balance sheet date. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the

exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4F+ - H=—+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

u)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs

are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or

sale are interrupted or completed.

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified
as held for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying
amount will be recovered through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use and the asset
(or disposal group) is available for sale in its present
condition. A disposal group is a group of assets to be
disposed of together as a group in a single transaction,
and liabilities directly associated with those assets that
will be transferred in the transaction.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEEN4FA " H =+—H IFF¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

u)

Non-current assets held for sale (continued)

Immediately before classification as held for sale,
the measurement of the non-current assets (and all
individual assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is
brought up-to-date in accordance with the accounting
policies before the classification. Then, on initial
classification as held for sale and until disposal, the
non-current assets (except for certain assets as
explained below), or disposal groups, are recognised
at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell. The principal exceptions to this
measurement policy so far as the financial statements
of the group and the company are concerned are
deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee
benefits, financial assets (other than investments
in subsidiaries and associates) and investment
properties. These assets, even if held for sale, would
continue to be measured in accordance with the

policies set out elsewhere in note 1.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for
sale, and on subsequent remeasurement while held
for sale, are recognised in profit or loss. As long as a
non-current asset is classified as held for sale, (or is
included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale), the non-current asset is not depreciated or

amortised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4F+ - H=—+—H IFF¥

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

v)  Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party

is considered to be related to the Group if:

ii)

iii)

Vi)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control
the Group or exercise significant influence over
the Group in making financial and operating
policy decisions, or has joint control over the
Group;

the Group and the party are subject to common
control;

the party is an associate of the Group or a joint
venture in which the Group is a venturer;

the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's parent,
or a close family member of such an individual,
or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such
individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
Group or of any entity that is a related party of the
Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the

entity.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEEN4F A H=+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU Tt E)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

W)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's

various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated

if they share a majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; % ~FEE4F+ - H=—+—H IFF¥

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued one new HKFRS, a number of
amendments to HKFRSs and new Interpretations that are
first effective for the current accounting period of the Group
and the Company. Of these, the following developments are

relevant to the Group's financial statements.

° HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”

° HKAS 1 (revised) " Presentation of Financial

Statements”

o Amendments to HKFRS 7 " Financial Instruments:
Disclosures” — improving disclosures about financial
instruments

° Improvements to HKFRSs (2008)

° Amendments to HKAS 27 “ Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements” — cost of an investment in a

subsidiary, jointly controlled entity or associate

° HKAS 23 (revised) “Borrowing Costs”

2.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICq]H)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEEN4FA " H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The amendments to HKAS 23 and the Improvements to
HKFRSs (2008) have had no material impact on the Group's
financial statements as the amendments were consistent
with the policy already adopted by the Group. The impact of

the remainder of these developments is as follows:

o HKFRS 8 requires segment disclosure to be based
on the way that the Group’s chief operating decision
maker regards and manages the Group, with the
amounts reported for each reportable segment
being the measures reported to the Group's
chief operating decision maker for the purposes
of assessing segment performance and making
decisions about operating matters. This contrasts
with the presentation of segment information in prior
years which was based on a disaggregation of the
Group's financial statements into segments based
on related products and services and on geographical
areas. The adoption of HKFRS 8 has resulted in the
presentation of segment information in a manner that
is more consistent with internal reporting provided to
the Group’s most senior executive management, and
has resulted in additional reportable segments being
identified and presented (see note 12). Corresponding
amounts have been provided on a basis consistent

with the revised segment information.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4F+ - H=—+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. S EHBOR (8)
(CONTINUED)

As a result of the adoption of HKAS 1 (revised), details
of changes in equity during the period arising from
transactions with equity shareholders in their capacity
as such have been presented separately from all
other income and expenses in a revised consolidated
statement of changes in equity. All other items of
income and expense are presented in the consolidated
income statement, if they are recognised as part of
profit or loss for the period, or otherwise in a new
primary statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Corresponding amounts have
been restated to conform to the new presentation.
This change in presentation has no effect on reported
profit or loss, total income and expense or net assets
for any period presented.

As a result of the adoption of the amendments
to HKFRS 7, the financial statements included
expanded disclosures in note 24(b) about the fair value
measurement of the Group's financial instruments,
categorising these fair value measurements into
a three-level fair value hierarchy according to the
extent to which they are based on observable
market data. The Group has taken advantage of the
transitional provisions set out in the amendments to
HKFRS 7, under which comparative information for
the newly required disclosures about the fair value
measurements of financial instruments has not been
provided.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEEN4FA " H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

2.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The amendments to HKAS 27 have removed the
requirement that dividends out of pre-acquisition
profits should be recognised as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the investment in the investee,
rather than as income. As a result, as from 1 January
2009, all dividends receivable from subsidiaries,
whether out of pre-or post-acquisition profits, will be
recognised in the Company’s profit or loss and the
carrying amount of the investment in the investee
will not be reduced unless that carrying amount is
assessed to be impaired as a result of the investee
declaring the dividend. In such cases, in addition
to recognising dividend income in profit or loss,
the Company would recognise an impairment loss.
In accordance with the transitional provisions in
the amendment, this new policy will be applied
prospectively to any dividends receivable in the current
or future periods and previous periods have not been

restated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4F+ - H=—+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

TURNOVER 3.

The principal activities of the Group are property investment
and management, property development, property
construction and provision of horticultural services.

Turnover represents the rental income, proceeds from
sales of properties, revenue from provision of property
management services and revenue from provision of
horticultural services. The amount of each significant
category of revenue recognised in turnover during the year

e

AEBEZIZEBRMERERE
B DERERE WMEXRERRERHERZ
FR#%

HEREHeBA  HEMEZME
FIE - RERHDEEERSG 2 R
RRBRERBRS 2 HE - FAR
HEBEBRRZE—ERRAERNZS
BT

is as follows:
2009 2008
—EENF —ZEN\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FiExT FAET
Gross rentals from the Group's REREEMEZHEHERE
properties 2,303 1,612
Gross proceeds from properties sold KRB B L&Y E 2 TS RIERE 29,850 43,128
Revenue from provision of property RERPDEE B IR < Wm 287 289
management services
Revenue from provision of R EREEERSE 2 W 3,227 3,504
horticultural services
35,667 48,533
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4FA " H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

4. OTHER REVENUE AND NET (LOSS)/ 4. Jefbda: & O#), B S#
INCOME
2009 2008
—EBEENE —TT)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FAET
Other revenue Hinlhs
Interest income FEMA
— banks —#R1T 95 16
- others —HAth 1
Total interest income RN EE AERER
on financial assets not TRVEE 2 M BIRA R
at fair value through profit or loss 96 22
Others Hit 114 131
210 153
Other net (loss)/income Hith (B518) W FEE
Loss on disposal of fixed assets LERTEEE ZEE (10) -
Revaluation losses on buildings BFEHEER (70) (9)
Avaliable-for-sale securities: AHEERS
reclassified from equity BEREN S
— on impairment —RE (70) -
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain HNE (B518), W 358 (986) 519
(1,136) 510

80 Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7



Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; % ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

5. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5. BRBLRG#A)
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BREADEFE MR (GEA) ¢
2009 2008
—EEhEFE ZZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
(a) Finance costs (a) BERA
Total interest expense on LN FEFAEBRZ
financial liabilities not at fair CRBENEAX
value through profit or loss: 4BEE -
— Interest on bank borrowings — BN AT B
wholly repayable within BB 2 R1T
five years BHEFE 1,506 3,470
Less: Interest expense capitalised into i : ZEERWERNER(L
properties under development* Z B (1,212) (3,291)
294 179
* The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 0.84% to 1.18% * BERATIAFE0B4% E118%(ZFF
(2008: 0.99%-4.47 %) per annum. N\ 1 0.99% & 4.47%) FIABAAL
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4FA " H=+—H IFF¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

5. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
(CONTINUED)

5. BRBLwI A (41)

2009 2008
“EENE “EEN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn FEn
(b)  Staff costs (including (b) EIRK(BEESHE)
directors’ emoluments)
Contributions to defined contribution FERKEEIHT
retirement plan (note 11) GED 69 30
Salaries, wages and other benefits ¢ TEREMER 3,622 2,881
3,691 2911
2009 2008
“EETNE “EEN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin FEL
(c)  Otheritems (c) HftEE
Amortisation of land lease premium METHERSH 12 12
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment nE - BEREENE 1,115 1,136
Auditors' remuneration (-Gl
- audit services —BGRE 445 463
~ tax services —~RBRE 57 49
- other services —H iR 595 67
Operating lease charges: BEMOESL
minimum lease payments RIERAOMFH
- hire of plant and machinery SN 9 9
— hire of other assets (including -HREMmEE
property rentals) (BENERS) 2,747 2,631
Rentals received and receivable REASEMEEUR
from the Group's properties less direct Bz ReRERS T
outgoings of HK$1,044,000 1,044,000 87T
(2008: HK$1,149,000) (ZFZ\F 1 1,149,000/87T) (1,259) (463)
Cost of inventories (note 16(c)) FERA (M 16() 28,923 41,638
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; % ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

6. INCOME TAX 6. Pififi
a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement a)  EABARRNZBLER
represents:
2009 2008
—EEhFE ZZTTNHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHL
Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax EABIE - BEREH
Provision for the year FNEE - -
Current tax - Singapore Income Tax  ANEA%{ 18 — ¥ hIR FR 1S5
Provision for the year FRERE (379) (287)
Over-provision in respect of prior years B 4 EREARE 153 -
Deferred tax ELEHIE
Origination and reversal of sz R 7 EAE R EIRE
temporary differences 82 5,767
Effect on deferred tax balances at R—A—BERBEEE)
1 January resulting from HERTIRE S FE
a change in tax rate - 25
Income tax (expense)/credit FrigE (ST ),/ & (144) 5,505
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year HRAERHZE-_ZTTAF+=
ended 31 December 2009 has been made as the A=+t—RLFEREANEE
Group has no estimated assessable profits arising in ERERTUR N - B AR BB
Hong Kong for the year (2008: Nil). FSHBE(ZZZN\F - &) -
The provision for Singapore Income Tax for 2009 FRETINE TSR TR A
is calculated at 17% (2008: 18%) of the normal EEBERBBAZITR (ZF
chargeable income. TN\F:18%)5tE -

Annual Report 2009 —ZFFJUEER 83



Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4FA " H=+—H IFF¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

6. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 6. Pifesi (4)
b)  Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting b) R B A S B B S B
profit at applicable tax rates: vl B A IR -
2009 2008
—EFTNEF —TT/\HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Profit before taxation R A A 85,814 34,290
Notional tax on profit before FrREEADRF 2
taxation, calculated at the rates HENIE - REEER
applicable to profits in the BARNGF ZHEGTE
countries concerned (14,180) (5,271)
Tax effect of non-deductible TR IR B R 2B
expenses ze (1,351) (244)
Tax effect of non-taxable income FERTMA BT E 17,292 12,317
Tax effect of unused tax losses RERZ ARBRIBEGE
not recognised ZIE R 2 (2,381) (2,054)
Tax effect of prior years’ tax losses ~ ANFEFFBEFE 2 FHIE
utilised this year Bz RIETE 257 254
Over-provision in prior years BAFERRERE
- Singapore Income Tax — TN FSHL 153 -
Effect on deferred tax R—HA—BBRRBXE
balances at 1 January resulting FENEPRIETR A S
from a change in tax rate Fa - 25
Others Hith 66 478
Actual tax (expense)/credit EBRFRIE (Y, e (144) 5,505
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; % ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 7. HHEME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 161 of RBEEBRATEOE 161 (REECES
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: T -
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Retirement 2009
Directors’ in kind Discretionary scheme Total
fee e 28 bonuses contributions —ETNE
ek RENHE BETEAL  RAGTEMT Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T TR FiET
Executive Directors: WTES:
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick EiR - 1,248 - - 1,248
Cheong Kim Pong ELE = = = - -
Cheong Sim Eng Fa - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors: BV IFHITES
Kan Fook Yee LS 120 - - - 120
Lai Hing Chiu, Dominic REH 120 - - - 120
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert BRLAE 120 - - - 120
Leung Wing Ning DKE 80 - = - 80
Non-executive directors: FRITEE
Lim Ghee & - - - - -
Cheong Hooi Kheng* s - - - - -
440 1,248 - - 1,688
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4FA " H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

7. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 7. EA A (B)
(CONTINUED)
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Retirement 2008
Directors’ inkind  Discretionary scheme Total
fee B bonuses  contributions “EENE
HES R g BfSlEar ARG Gt
HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$000 HKS$’000
SR Tt T Tt Tt
Executive Directors: TS
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick kst - 458 - - 458
Cheong Kim Pong et - - - - -
Cheong Sim Eng SRS - - - - -

Independent non-executive directors: WL FHATE S -

Kan Fook Yee fitets 100 - - - 100
Lai Hing Chiu, Dominic REE 100 - - - 100
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert WLl 100 - - - 100
Non-executive directors: FofrESR:
Lim Ghee M - - - - -
Cheong Hooi Kheng* B - - - - -
300 458 - - 758
* Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng's directorship is alternate to Madam Lim * EEEALtAMELLZERES -
Ghee.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; % ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one
(2008: one) is a director whose emoluments are disclosed in

note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

I B A L

hER&EHFMALH  —H(ZFEN
F:—R)REE EESERHET7H
WEE e AU E(ZEZT)N\F - m4E)

other four (2008: four) individuals are as follows: AT ZHMERED T ¢
2009 2008
—EZAE —TT)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T8 FHET
Salaries and other emoluments e M E b 958 968
Compensation for loss of office WAREIERE - 21
Retirement scheme contributions RORET 2R 41 42
999 1,031

The emoluments of the four (2008: four) individuals with the

highest emoluments are within the following bands:

mE(ZEENF : IR &ZSFHHA
T2 FHBAEATEER

2009 2008
“BENFE -TT)\F
Number of Number of

individuals individuals
A AEL
Nil - HK$1,000,000 = —1,000,00078 7T 4 4
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4FA " H=+—H IFF¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

10.

(LU TTtHE)

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company includes a profit of HK$54,982,000 (2008: loss
of HK$1,066,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

a)

b)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders
of the Company of HK$85,670,000 (2008:
HK$39,795,000) and the weighted average number of
approximately 2,544,831,000 (2008: 2,544,353,000)
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

In December 2009, the Company completed a rights
issue, details of which are provided in note 23(b)(ii).
The effect of the bonus element included within the
rights issue has been included within the calculation
of basic earnings per share for both years. The effect
of the rights issue was to increase the weighted
average number of ordinary shares by approximately
152,420,000 (2008: 151,942,000).

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic
earnings per share as the Company does not have
dilutive potential ordinary shares for the years ended
31 December 2009 and 2008.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; % ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥

11. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT
PLAN

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme"”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$20,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

11.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

P 5 Btk OB it =

AEERBFRBBHME B EIF
FIEREBER GO EERENER
ZEEHITARFIMEESS
HEREEE]) - @RS
HBBMYREATE 2 FEHFRAK
e RERBIMEAEEHE - BE
LEESAREERBIRALZL% M
Zat M ESEABHERALRA
20,0008 7T ° &=t &2 R Ty BN B 53
B o
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4FA " H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

12. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by a mixture of both business lines (products
and services) and geography. In a manner consistent
with the way in which information is reported internally
to the Group’'s most senior executive management for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following three
reportable segments. No operating segments have been
aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

- Property investment and management: this segment
leases the Group's properties to generate rental
income and to gain from the appreciation in the
properties’ value in the long term, and provides
building management services. Currently the Group's
investment property portfolio is located entirely in
Hong Kong.

- Property development: this segment develops and
sells the Group’s residential properties. Currently the
Group's activities in this regard are carried out in Hong

Kong and Singapore.
- Horticultural services: this segment provides

horticultural services. Currently the Group's activities
in this regard are carried out in Hong Kong.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; % ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

12. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group's senior executive management monitors
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets
and current assets with the exception of interests in
associates, investments in financial assets, deferred
tax assets and other corporate assets. Segment
liabilities include trade creditors and other payable
attributable to the sales activities of the individual
segments and bank borrowings managed directly by

the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or

amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

12. 23 ()

(a)
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4FA " H=+—H IFF¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTtHE)

12. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
“adjusted EBITDA" i.e.,

interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation”, where

“adjusted earnings before

“interest” is regarded as including investment income
and “depreciation and amortisation” is regarded as
including impairment losses on non-current assets.
To arrive at adjusted EBITDA the Group’s earnings are
further adjusted for items not specifically attributed to
individual segments, such as directors’ and auditors’
remuneration and other corporate administration

costs.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning adjusted EBITDA, management is provided
with segment information concerning revenue
(including inter segment sales), interest income
and expense from cash balances and borrowings
managed directly by the segments, depreciation,
amortisation and impairment loses and additions to
non-current segment assets used by the segments in
their operations. Inter-segment sales are priced with
reference to prices charged to external parties for
similar orders.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; % ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

12. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

a)

12. 23 ()

Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) (a) rBkAL - WAl XA (a0
Information regarding the Group's reportable REE—ZZZTNER-ZFTNEF
segments as provided to the Group's most senior TZ A=+ RLEFEZERD
executive management for the purposes of resource kA EDBERARNAEEES
allocation and assessment of segment performance i&ﬁﬂ(?ﬁ BABRBEBALRSE
for the years end 31 December 2009 and 2008 is set REDEZERER T -
out below.
Property Property
Property investment development development Horticultural
and management - Hong Kong - Singapore services Total
UERERER UEER-ER DERR- AR BERH it
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
TEENE CITNE OCEERE CIRNE CEEME CTR/E CEEME CFR/E CEEME TRV
HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TEL TAT TAnr TRn TEm TER TEL TET TEn
Revenue from exteml KagiERL

customers e 281 289 - - 32,153 4740 3201 3504 35,667 48533
Inter-segment revenue pL e - - 1M 6425 - - - - N 6425
Reportable seqment evenue FEAE% pon M9 UM GOF PR W70 3a) 364 4R GO
Reportable segment profit/loss) ~ H&2EER/(BE)

(adjusted EBITDA) (A= EBITDA) 101,252 14871 (1.377) (669) 3956 (20.431) 110 148 104,601 49529
Intgrst income RO 2 3 /) - 1 5 - - % 8
Inerest expenses ez - - - - - (157 - - - (15)
Depreciaton and amortisaton EMRER

for the year B - - 2 ] m 200/ (65) (65) (144) (268
Fair value gain o transfer ARENEEEER

of investment properties 127 AT

o properties under development 101,990 - - - - - - - 101,99 -
Valuaton gains on REmERENE

Investment property - 75,501 - - - - - - - 75,501
Income tax expense credt FBR(E) /2 - i) - - (144 5065 - - (144 5505
Reportable segment assets SAREE 39 R 608ET % TR 97416 855 CIT <] T SR )
Addiions to non-curient imﬁiﬁiﬁiﬁ

seqment assets durng the year AELE 700 6,499 - - 53 bi - 8 7,063 6,536
Reportable segment liabilities &",@EF b} 128410 281582 4708 856 2500 164 % 282680 135714

For the year ended 31 December 2009, revenues of
approximately HK$10,404,000, HK$9,745,000 and
HK$9,700,000 are derived from 3 single external
customers respectively, each of them contributed over
10% of the total revenue of the Group. These revenues
are attributable to the property development segment.
No revenue was derived from these 3 single external
customers for the year ended 31 December 2008.

For the year ended 31 December 2008, revenues
of approximately HK$21,792,000, HK$12,229,000
and HK$8,746,000 are derived from another 3 single
external customers respectively, each of them
contributed over 10% of total revenue of the Group.
These revenues are attributable to the property
development segment. No revenue was derived from
these 3 single external customers for the year ended 31
December 2009.

HE_ZZhF+-_A=+—
1EFE - 410,404,000 7T -
9,745,000 7T 9,700,000 7T
ZH&Z/\“EUXE BB —HIE
F HBESNAAERZ BT
BEIHBIE10% - Z2E WK
EMEERSE - BHE_ZTTN
FH+—_A=+—HLEFE %=
BB —HINE P ISR

S o

1k

12,229, ooo,%mzzsa 746,000 %
T2 WS BT E BN =% B —
HINER  WEDFIRAEEZ
BUHERIBIB10% ° ZFWE
HREMEBRELI B - BE_Z
TAF+_A=+—RHIFE"
{;gjqu%ﬁ HINE P I A R AT
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #F ~FEENF+ _H =1—HiFF/&
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LA#TCFHE)
12. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 12. A% ()
b)  Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit or (b) W& BB - BASER - B
loss, assets and liabilities 7 R A 2 ik
2009 2008
—EBEANE T T)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiExT FHIT
Revenue Wi
Reportable segment revenue WwE DB E 47,112 54,958
Elimination of inter-segment ik R Il
revenue (11,445) (6,425)
Consolidated turnover Re R 35,667 48,5633
Profit & A
Reportable segment profit WED BT 104,601 49,529
Elimination of inter-segment D LR
profits (1,630) (725)
Reportable segment profit REAEEHINEFZ
derived from Group's external WEH IR
customers 102,971 48,804
Other revenue and HAtb e 0%
net (loss)/ income (E518), WA (926) 663
Depreciation and amortisation e s (1,127) (1,148)
Finance costs BE AR (294) (179)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries LERBAR .z WE 4,940 -
Unallocated corporate expenses RABEARZH (19,750) (13,850)
Consolidated profit before BRI ATAR S R T
taxation 85,814 34,290
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; % ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

12. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 12. 2% ()

b)  Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit or (b)  WEHARBGE - B E - E
loss, assets and liabilities (continued) e K B 2 SR ()
2009 2008
—EBZ2HE —TT)NEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets WEDBEEE 683,204 454,190
Elimination of inter-segment 8 5 FE 18 FE U Zh IR
receivables - _
683,204 454,190
Other financial assets HithemEE 4,780 1,610
Tax recoverable Al e F IR - 1
Unallocated corporate assets ROBEARIEE 29,713 5,048
Consolidated total assets IREBERR 717,697 460,849
Liabilities afE
Reportable segment liabilities HwESEAaR 282,680 135,714
Elimination of inter-segment WD LR
payables FEU A - -
282,680 135,714
Current tax liabilities MEBTIBAE 430 504
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBEE - 83
Unallocated corporate liabilities KoL ARIAE 14,526 4,764
Consolidated total liabilities IrERERE 297,636 141,065
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4FA " H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

12. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

(¢) Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group's revenue from
external customers and (i) the Group’s fixed assets,
("specified non-current assets”). The geographical
location of customers is based on the location at which
the services were provided or the goods delivered.
The geographical location of the specified non-current
assets is based on the physical location of the asset, in
the case of property, plant and equipment.

12. 2% (480

(©

H s R

TRETIE- () AEEHE T EI
BRzWaR () AEEZEEE
E((HEEFRBDHEE]) THELE
ZEF - B RIZATRH
RBREMEEELE D 48
THRRDEEFREMEREEE
BRATAEE (AW - BE k&

M=) &y e

Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
REHINEF 2 W5 EEFRBEE
2009 2008 2009 2008
—ZENE ZEENF —EENE ZTENF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TiExT FTAT TET THT
Hong Kong B 3,514 3,793 3,561 359,477
Singapore N 32,153 44,740 = 399
35,667 48,533 3,561 359,876
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; % ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

13. FIXED ASSETS 13. Al ¥
a)  The Group a) A
Interests in
leasehold Assets of
land held disposal
for own group
Furniture, use under classified
Buildings equipment operating as held
held forown  and other leases Total for sale
use carried fixed assets PMRESE fixed 28R
atfairvalue Ml 1 Investment R&EEE assets  FEFHE

UAFESIRZ KEf  Subtotal property EHEELH ETEE ZHE
BEgpE:  BREE PNt RENE 2R #E  AREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fin TAR TET TEx Fin TER TET

Cost or valuation: FRASAEE :
At 1 January 2008 n=E%\#-A-H 430 4,832 5,262 273,320 600 279,182 -
Exchange adjustments EiBE - 0l ] - - ] -
Additions AE - 1,606 1,606 6,499 - 8,105 -
Disposal HE - 67) 67) - - 67) -
Deficit on revaluation BB (9) - (9 - - (9 -
Less: elimination of W REEHH
accumulated
depreciation 1 - (1) - - (1) -
Fair value adjustment AFERE - - - 75,501 - 75,501 -
At 31 December 2008 RZZENE
+-A=+-H 410 6,364 6,774 365,320 600 362,694 -
Representing: HER
Cost [R1E - 6,364 6,364 - 600 6,964 -
Valuation - 2008 ftE-—22N\E 410 - 410 355320 - 355730 -
410 6,364 6,774 365,320 600 362,694 -
At 1 January 2009 RZZENE—A-H 410 6,364 6,774 365,320 600 362,694 -
Exchange adjustments B N R - 29 29 - - 29 -
Additions AE - 270 270 7,010 - 7,280 -
Disposal & - (731) (731) - - (731) -
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR - (286) (286) - - (286) -
Transfer to assets of ERENBARELE
disposal group classified ZMEERIEE
as held for sale - (443) (443) - - (443) 443
Deficit on revaluation BiE4 (70) - (70) - - (70 -
Less: elimination of W 2RNEHH
accumulated
depreciation (10) - (10) - - (10) -
Fair value adjustment ATERZ - - - 101,990 - 101,990 -
Transfer to properties under ERERMERRINE
development for sale - - - (464,000) - (464,000) -
At 31 December 2009 RZEENE
T=A=T-R LB 5203 . 558 w8 648 M3
Representing: HER
Cost R{E - 5,203 5,203 - 600 5,803 443
Valuation - 2009 EE-ZTTNE 330 - 330 320 - 650 -
330 5,203 5,533 320 600 6,453 443
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA ICATH)

13. FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED) 13. Bl ¥ (4)

98 Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B iR 24 7

a)  The Group (continued) a)  AEE (&)
Interests in
leasehold Assets of
land held disposal
for own group
Furniture, use under classified
Buildings equipment operating as held
held forown  and other leases Total for sale
use carried fixed assets RiEELE fixed it
atfairvalue il RfE Investment  AXI51EE assets  FFFHE
UAFENR REf  Subtotal  property BRELH ETEE ZHE
BERRET BEREE N RENE 2R BE  ApEE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR Thx ThEn TEL TEL T Thr
Accumulated depreciation: ~ ZREIE :
At 1 January 2008 R=ZF\5-A—-H - 1,586 1,586 - 148 1,734 -
Exchange adjustments B X FE - 8 8 - - 8 -
Charge for the year REERH il 1,125 1,136 - 12 1,148 -
Written back on disposal HERRE - (45) (45) - - (45) -
Elimination on revaluation BRI (1) - (11) - - (11) -
At 31 December 2008 RZEEN\F
tsATtR O T DO . N
At 1 January 2009 R=ZEhE-A—-H - 2,658 2,658 - 160 2818 -
Exchange adjustments XA - 23 23 - - 23 -
Charge for the year FEEZW 10 1,106 1,115 - 12 1127 -
Written back on disposal HERD - (449) (449) - - (449) -
Written back on disposal HEWBLRZERE
of subsidiaries - (286) (286) - - (286) -
Elimination on revaluation HHBMR (10) - (10 - - (10) -
Transfer to assets EREDEARELE
of disposal group ZHEERIEE
classified as held for sale - (331) (331) - - (331) 331
At 31 December 2009 RZEENE
tAztE O T D L . D
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2009 R-ZENE
+=A=+-H 330 2,483 2813 320 428 3,561 112
At 31 December 2008 R-ZEN\E
+-A=+-H 410 3,706 4,116 365,320 440 359,876 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; % ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LIi#ICq]H)

13. FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

b)

<)

Revaluation of investment properties

All investment properties of the Group were revalued
as at 31 December 2009 and 2008 on an open market
value basis calculated by reference to recent market
transactions in comparable properties. The valuations
were carried out by an independent firm of surveyors,
DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, who have among
their staff members of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors with recent experience in the location and

category of property being valued.

Revaluation of buildings held for own use

The buildings held by the Group for own use were
revalued as at 31 December 2009 and 2008 at their
open market value by reference to recent market
transactions in comparable properties. The valuations
were carried out by an independent firm of surveyors,
DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, who have among
their staff members of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors with recent experience in the location and

category of property being valued.

The revaluation deficit of HK$70,000 (2008: HK$9,000)
has been recognised in profit or loss.

Had these buildings held for own use been carried
at cost less accumulated depreciation, the carrying
amounts would have been HK$492,000 (2008:
HK$512,000).

13, [ % A (4)

b)

)

&ﬁ%%iﬁ

RIBZENFR-_BZNF+=
H:-i——EI CAEENERSE
AMEZAMHERSELZ
AATEEESHMARED
¥ o MERBLNEMEBRIT
BERAB(REEBREERE
MEggRetr 8 TWHEN
FrisEYRIE BRI AR
185 ) #AT -

Ffe oA 2 WA
RZZZNFRZZZNF+Z
H:+*EI CAEE2ER LY
EZEHMERSGZ ARAMEE
HREERET o hEBRBEA
EMEERTERAR (EHEHS
BREBAEMEBSERS T2
B T8 P ib B FE i 2 &
FRIE B 2 1558 ) #1T -

=l B4 70,000;‘%7n(:$$)\
F:9,0008 L) ERIBRKE

e

W& EHIEE BEFRIAR
2HFEINNE EEEAEHK
£492,0008 L(ZZ T N\ F:
512,00087T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEEN4FA " H =+—H IFF¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

13. FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED) 13. Bl ¥ (4)
d)  The analysis of net book value of properties is as follows: d)  PRREFEI T
2009 2008
—EZhE —TTNEFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FBT FAT
In Hong Kong REE
- long leases —RHHEE - 355,000
— medium-term leases —FHIFE 1,078 1,170
1,078 356,170
Representing: BER :
Buildings held for own use VAR TFESI R 2 F5E
carried at fair value BRETF 330 410
Investment property REWF 320 355,320
Interests in leasehold land IR IR A E TR AF51E
held for own use under BAMAE s
operating leases 428 440
1,078 356,170
e)  Pledge of investment properties e)  BEWEMM

As at 31 December 2009, an investment property with
a carrying amount of HK$ Nil (2008: HK$355,000,000)
were pledged as collateral for the Group's bank

borrowings, details of which are set out in note 21.

) Investment properties under the redevelopment
Included in investment property in the consolidated
balance sheet as at 31 December 2009 is an

investment property of approximately HK$ Nil (2008:
HK$355,000,000) under redevelopment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; % ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥

14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

14. RHEA A 2 8%

The Company
b /NG|
2009 2008
—ZEFHRE —TT)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FHET
Unlisted shares, at cost KLEmESD - RE 1 1

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of

TRERKTEVEAREESE &
ERAEZHBLFZEH -

the Group.
Proportion of ownership interests
BERRERLA
Place of Particulars Group's
incorporation  of issued and effective Held by the Held by a
and operation  paid-up capital interest  Company subsidiary
Name of company SRR ERTRAE TEEZ NG H-EHE Principal activity
DEIER EEMY A BRER ] DEER TEXH
Cheung Kee Garden Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of 100% - 100% Investment holding and
R tEBERAE Bl HK$1 each and provision of
450,000 non-voting horticultural services
deferred shares REERRIRM
of HK$1 each BEHRH%
100REREE T
2 3@ 450,000 %
BREE1ETL
ERZEELR
Donwin Property Limited ~ Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% - 100% Property investment
RREZBERAA Bl HK$1 each WERE
2EEREE AT LER
Fort Property Management  Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% - 100% Provision of
Limited &5 HK$1 each management services
RENFERBRLT 2REREE AT EER REEBRY
Sui Chong Finance Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% - 100% Provision of financing and
Limited &b HK$10 each management services
mERBERRA REREBI0ETZ SRR RAERE RETERH
Sui Chong International Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% - 100% Property investment
(HK.) Limited Bl HK$10 each WERE

REER (BE)BRAT

2REREE 10T BBk
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4FA " H=+—H IFF¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTtHE)

14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

14. JA)E 2 v Z B (5

(CONTINUED)
Proportion of ownership interests
BRERRLA
Place of Particulars Group's
incorporation  of issued and effective Held by the Held by a
and operation  paid-up capital interest Company subsidiary
Name of company FMERLR ERETRARE FEEZ NG H-ENE Principal activity
DEER 2 Rz BikER BB G TEEH
Sui Chong International Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100% Provision of property
Resources Limited BB of HK$1 each management and
HEERERERAT 1,000 RERAEE 1 AT project management
LR services
RENEERR
EEERRYE
Super Homes Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$1 ~ 100% - 100% Property investment
i each and 100 non-voting and development
deferred shares of HK$0.3 NERERER
gach
100BEREE BT
LERR100BREHREE
03B BRZERER
Vision Capital Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% - 100% Investment holding
B HK$1 each REER
2EEREE BT LBk
Arundel Trading Pte Ltd*  The Republic 2 ordinary shares of 100% - 100% Property development
of Singapore S$1 each NERR
("Singapore”)  2REREE KL Tk
g ARE
(g )
Firth Enterprises Pte Ltd*  Singapore 2 ordinary shares of S§1 each  100% - 100% Property development
b EBREE T RTEER NELR
Goldease Investments British Virgin 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - 100% Investment holding
Limited* Islands VREE1ET SRR REER
EBRNHES
Hong Fok Development Singapore 1,000,000 ordinary 100% - 100% Property development
(Newton) Pte Ltd* AN shares of S$1 each NELR
1,000,000 R EAEE 1 57T
LRk
* Audited by other auditor * 5 EL A A% BRI 2 A%
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; % ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

15. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 15, S04l b 5 B 4 il 9 it
The Group The Company
rEE bN/NET|
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEAF ZZEZTN\HF ZEEAF ZZEZN\F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FE T FET FExT FAET
Available-for-sale RAFEA
unlisted equity HERLE™M
securities at fair value ~ BRAEH 1,280 1,610 = -
Available-for-sale BAER
unlisted debt HERLET
securities at fair value  E5& 5 3,500 - 3,500 -
4,780 1,610 3,500 -
16. INVENTORIES 16. f#1%
a) Inventories in the consolidated balance sheet a) JAGKEEEABERACEER
comprise: &
The Group
rEE
2009 2008
51 S— YANCE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FiExT FAT
Plants U=k 249 243
Properties under development MHECERPYE
for sale 487,149 -
Properties held for sale BEREWE - 94,288
487,398 94,531
At 31 December 2009, inventories of HK$Nil (2008: RZEZAF+ZA=+—
HK$94,288,000) were carried at fair value less cost to B GEZAT(ZZEZENGF
sell. 94,288,000) LA 2 B & 5 & A
RAHR ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4FA " H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

16. INVENTORIES (CONTINUED) 16. 1 (&)

b)  The analysis of carrying value of properties under b) HEHEZERPDERSFELES
development for sale and properties held for sale is as ZEZEREEINOT
follows:

The Group
rEE

2009 2008

—ETHhF —ZTT)NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHEIT TET
Outside Hong Kong BB

— Freehold — KA - 94,288
In Hong Kong BAERN

- 50 years or more —B0F A+ 487,149 -

487,149 94,288

c) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised

as an expense and included in profit or loss is as

o WRIR/RAXRBRBRRIFE

AT

follows:
Plants Properties Total
L) nE mct
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
“EENE —TTN\F ZBENE CZTT\F ZEBEAE -TI)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL ThEL TEL THL THT TiEx
Caryingamountof ~ DEFE
inventories sold ZEAE 474 513 28,449 41,125 28,923 41,638
Write-down of FEMR
inventories - - - 25,908 - 25,908
Reversal of FEMRER
write-down
of inventories - - (2,029) - (2,029) -
474 513 26,420 67,033 26,894 67,546

The reversal of write-down of inventories made in prior
years arose due to an increase in the estimated net
realisable value of properties held for sale as a result of
a change in recent market transactions in comparable
properties.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; % ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

INVENTORIES (CONTINUED)

d) As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the Group's
properties under development for sale and certain of
the Group's properties held for sale were pledged as
collateral for the Group's bank borrowings, details of
which are set out in note 21.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

16. 8 (&)
d) R-EENFR_BEENF+Z

A=+—8  "EERFELEZ
BRPYERNEEE TIHER
EZWEHD FERRB  EAESE
ERITEEZERR - FED 5
BRIIFE21 ©

17. & 5 B I b W B M o

The Group The Company
rEE RAF]
2009 2008 2009 2008
—E2NF T NEF —EENEF —ZTN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET FEIT FET
Amount due from a FEU — AP /B A A
subsidiary 2R - - 261,037 207,567
Trade debtors FEWE 5 BRK 511 498 - -
Receivables for monies 7RI IBEE LS
held by the solicitor BB 2 W
in respect of pre-sale AR
deposits 112,675 - - -
Other debtors Hfth EUAR R 60 321 = -
Loans and receivables B3 & Y HIE 113,246 819 261,037 207,567
Rental and other MekEMmZS
deposits 1,475 1,032 - -
Prepaid sales TEfHERE
commission 8,204 - - -
Other prepaid expenses EfFEf RIS 577 490 372 372
123,502 2,341 261,409 207,939

The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, non-

interest-bearing and has no fixed terms of repayment.

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

el — M B R B2 RRTHEEA -
et B BEBEEERS -

BB S REMEWRERE - B HR
—F R EHER R o
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4FA " H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(a) Ageing analysis
Included in trade and other receivables are trade
debtors (net of impairment losses for bad and doubtful
debts) with the following ageing analysis as of the

balance sheet date:

17. S5 B 30 i MBIk X (480)

(a)

Wk B 23 B
RE 5 REMERIRER - B

BHER (MR RERBERSR)

REEHZREDTOT

The Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EERE —ZTTN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiET FH&T
Within 1 month —fEART 381 342
1 to 3 months —Z={@A 118 150
More than 3 months but less HBiE=1EA

than 12 months B R+—EA 12 6
511 498

The Group's credit policy is set out in note 24(a).

(b) Impairment of trade debtors
Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group
is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in
which case the impairment loss is written off against
trade debtors directly (see note 1(i)i)).

106 Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7

(b)

NEBEBZEEBREEHNKF
24(a) °

HEVBC BT 54 MRk 2 WAL
BEREWE SRR ZMERIET
ERBERTLA - RIEREEE
M AR B2 e RN AIE
AR RIEBER TREBETE
BN EACE 5 MR i (R
1) e



Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; % ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17. B2 5 B 3 b B WO 95 (48)
(CONTINUED)
(¢) Trade debtors that are not impaired (c)  RTPWALZHEW R S IRk
The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither BRIk H AR AT TIRE 2 B
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired BOBRRZEERAONTT

are as follows:

The Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EEHAEFE TN\ F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FA&T
Neither past due nor impaired BEAR@HEATARRE 381 342
Less than 1 month past due BaE R —EA 101 142
More than 1 month past due BN —EA 29 14
130 156
511 498
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired BE AR 38 BR IR AR BB 2 FE U SR IE T)
relate to a range of customers for whom there was no WRBEMHATEBAERCH T
recent history of default. B o
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate BEEEKR T REEBGIETY
to a number of independent customers that have a good WRETEASEEERIFEER
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, B BURE o ERAELR
management believes that no impairment allowance EEERE ANEEEETE
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has HIREREHREFEEHRTIRA
not been a significant change in credit quality and the A2 E - WBERZEE S
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The ELRERE AEETERS
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. EfBEEZEER B m -
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4FA " H=+—H IFF¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(LU TTtHE)

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

18. BlERBLE&HFMY
@) BERRAZERILE -

The Group The Company
rEE RAT
2009 2008 2009 2008
—ZTHhE ZETNF —ZTHhE ZETN\EF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FHT TBT THT
Deposits with banks and TR R
other financial Hir o mikia
institutions ZER 25,022 2,489 24,220 6
Cash on hand FHEzB® 1 1 - -
25,023 2,490 24,220 6
Pledged bank deposits ERETEE
for bank borrowings ZIRITIER (7) (4) - -
Cashand cash equivalents ~ BEBEXRZES
in the balance sheets FREEEY 25,016 2,486 24,220 6
Cashand cash equivalents T ARHEHEZ
included in assets of HEARNEEN
disposal group held for sale ReRREEED 3,625 -
Cashand cash equivalents ~ MEEBRERR
in the consolidated cash mABERER
flow statement ZEEREE
ZEY 28,641 2,486

At 31 December 2009, bank balances carry interest at market

rates which range from 0.00% to 0.01% (2008: range form
0.00% to 0.01%). At 31 December 2009, pledged bank
deposits carry interest rate of 0.00% (2008: 0.00%). The

pledged bank deposits will be released upon the settlement of

the relevant bank borrowings.

Pledged bank deposits represents deposits pledged to

banks to secure banking facilities granted to the Group. The

pledged bank deposits have been pledged to secure long-

term borrowings and are therefore classified as non-current

assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; % ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥

18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTiAHE)

18. Bl BBl &% (8)

(CONTINUED)
b)  Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated b) B B 1 e R LA A AR B 2
from operations: 113
The Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EERE —ZTTN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiExT Fi&T
Profit before taxation ERA A& A 85,814 34,290
Adjustments for: AT IR -
— Valuation gains on investment — B
property (L6 - (75,501)
— Fair value gain on transfer of —HBICEYESE
investment properties to BRPYIEZ
properties under development N ERE (101,990) -~
— Revaluation losses on buildings —EFEHEE 70 9
— Depreciation —IrE 1,115 1,136
— Amortisation of land lease — T & B A 5
premium 12 12
— Impairment loss on —AHEEZELTES
available-for-sale unlisted IBIEEE
securities 70 -
— Finance costs — BB AR 294 179
— Interest income — S A (96) (22)
— Gain on disposal of subsidiaries — I EM B AR (4,940) -
— Loss on disposal of fixed assets —HEREEESE 10 -~
— (Reversal of write down)/ —TFE (Musam),~
write-down of inventories WoR (2,029) 25,908
— Foreign exchange loss — [ 5 518 1,403 866
Operating loss before changes REt&EBESE
in working capital A& EE (20,267) (13,123)
Decrease in inventories FERD 4,739 39,911
Decrease in trade and 2 5 REAEUARIE
other receivables Vo 2,699 1,181
Increase/(decrease) in trade B 5 M EAEIRIA
and other payables #hn,7 G ) 9,074 (2,068)
Cash (used in)/generated RERT(ER) EEZRE
from operations (3,755) 25,901
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4FA " H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

19. DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD 19. AEiARELEZ 4N

FOR SALE
The assets and liabilities related to Goldease Investments Goldease Investments Limited & H
Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the A7 (578 [Goldease £8 | ) 2 BE
“Goldease Group”) (part of the property development) have &E\%(%%%EZ*E‘BE ) BfEZ
been presented as held for sale following the approval of the TENF+-ARGBAEEEREM
Group’s management in November 2009 to sell the Goldease & Goldease & B 2 # & (ZHE~F & T
Group subject to certain conditions. Further details of such B EERAFHELE - ZLENE
disposal are disclosed in note 30. — BN M FE 30 #K 5% -
a)  Assets of disposal group classified as held for sale a) DHEAREHEZHEMEREE
The Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EEAEFE —ZTT)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FA&T
Property, plant and equipment W - WENRERE 112 -
Inventories rE
— properties held for sale outside —FHERE 2 BBEIN
Hong Kong (freehold) Yz O AERE) 69,675 -
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E A EUARIA 21 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBREEED 3,625 -
Total st 73,433 -
b)  Liabilities of disposal group classified as held for sale b) SNEAREHEZHEARAE
The Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EEAEFE —TT)NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Amount due to a substantial EREZRFFIA
shareholder (note 27(b)) (FfF5E27(0)) 216 -
Trade creditors JERTE SRR 28 -
Other creditors and accrued charges Efth &~ BE 51 & E 5T B 5% 188 -
Rental and other deposits received U4 & Eithiks 424 -
Tax payables FERERIR 430 -
Total st 1,286 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; % ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

19. DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD 19. B AFHEREZ HEAN

FOR SALE (CONTINUED) (#)

(c)  Cumulative income or expense recognised directly in (c) EHEERIEARFELHEZLER
equity relating to disposal group classified as held for Bz = NER 2 RIS H
sale =

2009 2008
—EEHRFE T )\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiExT T
Foreign exchange translation
adjustments SN P 5, FEE 9,386 -
20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20. BB B Al HE A MR
The Group The Company
rEE AN
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EENE ZTEN\EF —EENE —TEN\EF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET TET FET

Trade creditors BB ZER 7,950 99 - -

Retentions payable FEFHREB A 4,089 1,847 = -

Payable for over-subscription A% HBAR8 2

under rights issue FEFUR 7,468 - 7,468 -
Other creditors and Hofth AT BR K

accrued charges RIEFFAZ 3,054 4,487 2,174 517
Amount due to the ultimate ~ ERF &AM

holding company NEFIE

(note 27(b)) (FiEE27(b)) - 152 - -
Amount due to a substantial  JEf — (AT EALE

shareholder (note 27(b)) IR (BF3E 27(0) 3,650 - - -
Amount due to a related [EN—EBERR

company (note 27(b}) 7 (MEE27(0)) - 2,997 = -
Financial liabilities TRHER AR

measured at amortised 5I|8R 2 B 5

cost & 26,211 9,582 9,642 517
Forward sales deposits BlAEBHEE S

and instalments received PSR- INEA 123,957 - = -
Other deposits received BlizE - 356 = -

150,168 9,937 9,642 517

All of the trade and other payables (including amounts due BRIEMRERIBEIN MBE S REAM

ENRE(BRENBEALER) R
AR —FAASHIREZRKERE

to related parties), apart from the retentions payable, are
expected to be settled within one year or are repayable on

demand.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4FA " H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20. BB B Al HE A MR (4)
(CONTINUED)
Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors with RESMHEMEMNKERN BNES
the following ageing analysis as of the balance sheet date: RIEREER 2RI -
The Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EENEFE T\ F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Within 1 month —(BANAT 5,433 32
After 1 month but within 3 months —EAABETBB=(EA 43 37
After 3 months but within 6 months —EABERNBBENEAR 38 6
Over 6 months BB~ EH 2,436 24
7,950 99
21. BANK BORROWINGS 21. BUTHE R
At 31 December 2009, the bank borrowings were repayable RZZEZARF+ZA=+—H " #7
as follows: BEARNUTHEEES
The Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EEREFE —ZZTTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiET FHT
Within 1 year or on demand R—FRRERKEFER
classified under current liabilities BHEAMEAR) 145,741 235
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRETBBERF 260 128,248
After 2 years but within 5 years MEREBETBBRF 181 2,058
After 5 years AFENE - -
After 1 year and classified under —F A+
non-current liabilities BERIERBERE) 441 130,306
146,182 130,541
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 # £ —FEEIL4F | —H

21. BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2009, the bank borrowings were secured

=t —HIFFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

21. SYTHE R (8

—PEAFT=A=T—A 85

as follows: BEMERBRINOT :
The Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EZHhE —TT)N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FBT FAET
Bank loan RITEN
- Secured —HEM 145,493 129,617
- Unsecured — A 689 924
146,182 130,541

At 31 December 2009, the bank facilities of certain

subsidiaries were secured by:

iii)

iv)

fixed charges over the properties under development
for sale with carrying amount of HK$487,149,000 as at
31 December 2009 (2008: HK$Nil);

fixed charges over an investment property of
the Group situated in Hong Kong with carrying
value of HK$Nil as at 31 December 2009 (2008:
HK$355,000,000);

fixed charges over certain of the Group’'s properties
situated in Singapore with an aggregate carrying value
of 48,508,000 (2008: HK$73,578,000);

assignment of insurance, sale and rental proceeds of
the aforementioned properties situated in Hong Kong
and Singapore;

charges over certain of the Group’s bank deposits of
HK$7,000 (2008: HK$4,000);

R-TEAE+-A=+-H

BT

MEBARZRITHEERATIZEL

EiE

iii)

—EFANF+_A=1+—8"
FRTI{E A487,149,0008 (=%
TZNF:EBET) 2HBEEZE
R BEIEHA

—ETANFFTA=+—H
EEEEZ%?;’%E(:; TNEF
355,000,000 7T ) 2 AN & B A
BEBZREMEZ EFEEM

R E 4218 5 48,508,000 % 7T (=
TZ )\ 1 73,678,000/ 70) 2
REBEFTANRFINEZDEZ
E I

R DA BB RN 2
XzRe - HERBEMAEN
18

REBEZETIRITFRT7,000/8 T
(ZZZ)\F : 4,000/87T) 2 &
o
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4FA " H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)
21. BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 21. BT (B
vi) subordination and assignment of intra-group vi) UEBRTAXZABEEEEET
and shareholders’ loans to certain wholly-owned rEBET2ENBAR KRR

subsidiaries of the Group in favour of the banks;

vii)  floating charges over the assets of Super Homes
Limited ("SHL"), a subsidiary of the Group;

viii)  share mortgages over the entire issued share capital of
SHL; and

iX)  corporate guarantees given by the Company.

At 31 December 2009, the effective interest rates for the
floating rate bank borrowings range from 0.87% to 5%
(2008: 1.09% to 5%) per annum.

Except for bank borrowings of HK$Nil (2008: HK$1,617,000)
denominated in Singapore dollars, all the remaining bank
borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The bank borrowings are floating rate borrowings which
carry interest at Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
("HIBOR") plus 0.79% or Hong Kong Dollars Prime Lending
Rate (2008: HIBOR plus 0.79% or Hong Kong Dollars Prime
Lending Rate, except for the bank borrowings denominated
in Singapore dollars which carry interest at Lender’s Cost of
Funds plus 1.50%).
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ERRBRIER T AR

vii)  Super Homes Limited ([SHL])
(REEWBRAR) 2BEEZFH
i

vii) BESHLZ %
B R

BEBITRA Z I

xi)  ARBEEHZ ARER

RZZEZAF+ZA=+—8 &%
BF X B ZRITEEZERMEN
TREGFOSIEESE(_TT)\F
1.09EE5E) -

BRETEEZET( T )\ F:
1,617,000 7T ) Jh LA ST hn 3% T 5t &
N BTEB TRITEEY LB TTEHE -

RITEETFDAEEE - REER
TRZEKRE (EARITRERSE D M
o797€52;‘%ﬁﬁ$%‘?$ﬁw$é+é (=%
TN\F: BARITREFREMO79E
Eﬁzﬂéxa—ﬁ?ﬁﬂﬂ AT N T A
EEZRITEERRRIAZESKAN
M1BEEE) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; % ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥

22. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET

a) Income tax in the consolidated balance sheet

represents:

22,

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

e BRI 2 B A3 B
) BAAEAERAZAIEHIE -

The Group
REE
2009 2008
—EENF —ZEN\HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEIT FET

Under current assets:

Tax recoverable for the payment of
provisional Hong Kong Profits Tax

Under current liabilities:

Balance of Singapore income

tax provision for the year

MBEEET
BB NE AR
Z AT Bl 7 1R
mBAEEAET
REEHDNIR PSR RE
AR

- 504
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4FA " H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

22. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET 22. BEREAMKNZIIABE (4

(CONTINUED)

b)  Deferred tax liabilities recognised: b) CHERBZIEEREALN
The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised FAEBEEBBERANECHRIELR
in the consolidated balance sheet and the movements BRBEZHD RFNEEMOT

during the year are as follows:

The Group
K8

Fair value

adjustment for

Revaluation properties
of held for sale
investment BIEHE
property M¥EZAFE Total
REMFEER R Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TET FTExT FExT
At 1 January 2008 RZZEZENF—HA—H 440 5,346 5,786
Exchange adjustments P& A B - 89 89
Credited to profit or loss Bz EZMNEFA (415) (5,352) (5,767)
Effect on deferred tax m—H—AR
balances at 1 January AT
resulting from a change IR IR AR
in tax rate pd-7 (25) - (25)
At 31 December 2008 RZZTNF
+ZA=+—H - 83 83
At 1 January 2009 RZZEZThF—HA—H - 83 83
Exchange adjustments 0 3 R - (1 (1)
Credited to profit or loss P AIBZER - (82) (82)
At 31 December 2009 RZZTNF
+-A=+—H - - _
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; % ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥

22. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET

(CONTINUED)

b)  Deferred tax liabilities recognised: (Continued)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

22. WRAMRMNZPIB (8)

b) CRBZIEEBEAN : (8)

The Group
rEEH
2009 2008
—EENF —EFEN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT

i

Net deferred tax liabilities a7

E=11]
oy

T

balance sheet N pE ]
¢)  Deferred tax assets not recognised
i) The Group

In accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 1(p), at 31 December 2009, the Group has
not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
cumulative tax losses of HK$339,799,000 (2008:
HK$368,555,000) as it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the tax losses can
be utilised will be available in the relevant tax
jurisdiction and for the respective entity. The tax
losses do not expire under current tax legislation.

ii)  The Company
At 31 December 2009, the Company has
cumulative tax losses of HK$14,312,000 (2008:
HK$12,752,000) available for set-off against
future taxable profits for an unlimited period of
time. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of such cumulative tax losses as it is
not probable that future taxable profits against
which the tax losses can be utilized will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and such
tax losses are subject to the agreement with the
tax authority.

TEEEBERA
recognised on the consolidated MR 2 IRERIE
B

¢  RWERZIEHE B E
i) LE 5]

RIEM E1p) T & 2 &5
B RZZETNFE+_A
=+t—8 XEBLEHN
339,799,000 7L (ZETN
£F : 368,555,000/87C) 2 &2
SIREEIEERECHIEE
E - BAEBBZ B
TR MR AERI B BE T A ]
B R A R SR SR L R DAE
FiIEES BN 2 A - IRIRIR
IMISER - ZEMIBEE
WARFIE]

i) LA
RZZEZENLF+ A
=+—H ' AREA#
HERRERD N2
ERARFAHIEEE A
14,312,000 L (ZZZE N
£ 12,752,000 7T) © &
MEZERAHEEBER
RETIBEE  BALEER
BRI AR T KA
BE BE HE R 2R B ER Ui T A
EREBERE 2R A
ZEREEBAGHBEE
BRE  FA{EE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4FA " H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

23. CAPITAL AND RESERVES

a)  Movements in components of equity
The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of each component of the Group's
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes
in the Company's individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set

23. EAS Bl fi

a)

Al 2 AL 2 2 56 )
AEBzGEEERAKED 2
MR REH BREANGA
BREER - ARA R Z 185
HERBORFNRFRZ BB
BHN T :

out below:
The Company . AT |
Capital
redemption
Share Share reserve  Contributed  Fairvalue Accumulated
capital  premium  EXER surplus reserve losses Total
kxR R H\EH  LVERE  EHEE 3t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR ThRL TERL TR Thn
At 1 January 2008 W=FEN\E-F-H 119,620 - 121 234,897 - (146,143) 20849%
Total comprehensive Uﬁ@ XA
expense for the year - - - - - (1,066) (1,066)
At 31 December 2008 RZENETZA=t-A 119620 - 121 234,897 - (209 207429
At1 January 2009 RZZENE-F-H 119620 - 121 234897 - (7209 207429
Shares issued upon {HRET R
rights issug 11,962 4,785 - - - - 16,747
Total comprehensive EREENREE
income for the year - - - - 330 54,982 55312
At31 December 2009 RIERNETZA=1-8 131,582 4,785 0 234897 30 (@21 779488
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; % ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

23. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED) 23. HAR B A ()

b)  Share capital b) AR
i) Authorised and issued share capital i) BEERCETRE
2009 2008
“EENE “ETN\F
No. of shares  Nominal value No. of shares  Nominal value
RIDEE HE PR AE
‘000 HK$'000 '000 HK$'000
ThR TERT Fhk THET
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of SREE0.05
HK$0.05 each BT LR 3,000,000 150,000 3,000,000 150,000
Ordinary shares, issued and L@k BB
fully paid: RER
At 1 January »—A—H 2,392,411 119,620 2,392,411 119,620
Shares issued upon i v )
rights issue 239,241 11,962 - -
At 31 December B+=—A=1+—H 2,631,652 131,582 2,392,411 119,620
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to TR EAE NG EERT
receive dividends as declared from time to RER2KRE  BEARQ
time and are entitled to one vote per share at Flezx R E—Z&
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares ER-MBELTBEREAR
rank equally with regard to the Company’s RIZRHEEZHRSE
residual assets. o
ii)  Shares issued upon rights issue i) PLREFITZIRG
On 30 December 2009, the Company issued RZEBEZENF+ A=+
239,241,098 rights shares of HK$0.05 par value =R N/NESTE - S i 31 4
on the basis of one rights share for every ten BB —RERR G 2 EE
shares held at a subscription price of HK$0.07 2%17239,241,098 K F AR 2
per rights share. ME{E A 0.05 7% 7T 2 I %

9 REEESRERR
5 0.07787C °
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4FA " H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

23. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

¢)  Nature and purpose of reserves
i) Share premium and capital redemption reserve
The application of the share premium account
and capital redemption reserve is governed by

the Bermuda Companies Act.

ii)  Contributed surplus
The contributed surplus of the Group represents
the difference between the nominal value of
the share capital issued by the Company and
the aggregate of the share capital and the share
premium accounts of the subsidiaries acquired.
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the Company may make distributions
to its members out of contributed surplus in

certain circumstances.

iii)  Exchange reserve
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the

accounting policies set out in note 1(s).

iv)  Fair value reserve
The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of available-for-sale
securities held at the balance sheet date and
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting

policies set out in notes 1(e) and (i).

d) Distributability of reserves
At 31 December 2009, the aggregate amount
of reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company was HK$142,670,000
(2008: HK$87,688,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; % ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

23. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

e)

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing

access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of

changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors
its capital structure on the basis of a net debt-to-capital
ratio. For this purpose the Group defines net debt as
total debt (which includes interest-bearing loans and
borrowings, other financial liabilities) less cash and
bank balances. Capital comprises all components of

equity.

During 2009, the Group's strategy, which was
unchanged from 2008, was to maintain the net debt-

to-capital ratio at below 60%.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4FA " H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

23. AR Refill (4)

A B ()
RZEENFR_ZFEENF+=
B=t+—BzE%FEHERL

23. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

e) Capital management (Continued) e)
The net debt-to-capital ratio at 31 December 2009 and
2008 was as follows:

KT
The Group The Company
r&E VNG
Note 2009 2008 2009 2008
(i3 —ETNE —TTNF “ETNE —ETN\E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THAT FHEL TBT THET
Current liabilties: AR -
Financial liabilities of DERABIELEZ
disposal group classified as HEMRZ
held for sale SHER 19 432 - - -
Financial liabilities included AR S REMER
in trade and other payables FEzemBE 20 26,211 9,582 9,642 517
Bank borrowings RITIEE 21 145,741 235 - -
172,384 9,817 9,642 517
Non-current liabilities: FRBAE
Bank borrowings HBITIEE 21 41 130,306 = -
Total debt BHEE 172,825 140,123 9,642 517
Less: Pledged bank deposits 3 : BHEFRITFR 18 (7) (4) - -
Cash and cash RekBis
equivalents ZEN 18 (25,016) (2,486) (24,220) 6)
Cash and cash ARARBELE
equivalents of disposal ZHEARIZ
group classified RekBie
as held for sale ZEN 19 (3,625) - - -
Net debt/(deposits) &%,/ (1) 38 144,177 137,633 (14,578) 511
Capital ER 420,061 319,784 279,488 207,429
Net debt-to-capital ratio EHFELHES
BALE 34% 43% N/A 1%
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; % ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

23. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

e)

Capital management (Continued)

As covenanted in the bank loan agreement between
a bank and a subsidiary of the Company, the Group
is required to maintain the ratio of “consolidated net
total interest bearing debts” to “consolidated tangible
net worth” not exceeding 80%. For the purpose
of this capital requirement, “consolidated net total
interest-bearing debts” is defined as the aggregate
of interest-bearing borrowings less the aggregate of
cash and cash equivalent balance of the Group and
“consolidated tangible net worth” is defined as the
aggregate of the amount paid up or credited as paid
up on the issued share capital of the Company plus
share premium, retained earnings or reserves less the
intangible assets and minority interests of the Group.

Other than the above, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed
capital requirements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4FA " H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES

a) Financial risk factor

Exposure to credit, liquidity and interest rate risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.
These risks are mitigated by the Group's financial
management policies and practices described below.

i) Credit risk
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade and other receivables and cash at bank.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, credit
evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. The
Group grants a credit period of not more than
30 days from the date of billing. Debtors with
balances that are more than 3 months overdue
are requested to settle all outstanding balances
before any further credit is granted. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

Cash is placed with financial institution with good
credit rating.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country
in which customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to
individual customers. At the balance sheet date,
the Group has no significant concentration of
credit risk.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; % ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

a)

Financial risk factor (Continued)

i

i)

Credit risk (Continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk without
taking into account of any collateral held is
represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the balance sheet after
deducting any impairment allowance. Except for
the financial guarantees given by the Group and
the Company as set out in note 26(a), the Group
does not provide any other guarantees which
would expose the Group or the Company to
credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk
in respect of these financial guarantees at the
balance sheet date is disclosed in note 26(a).

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from trade
and other receivables are set out in note 17.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management,
including the short-term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands. The Group’s policy is
to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining
contractual maturities at the balance sheet date
of the Group’'s and the Company’s financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or,
if floating, based on rates at the balance sheet
date) and the earliest date the Group and the
Company can be required to pay:
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4FA " H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 24, i e A B B A VAR (%)
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)
a)  Financial risk factor (Continued) a)  A@EREEEK (4)
ii)  Liquidity risk (Continued) i) B E R ()
The Group
188
2009 2008
ZEENE RN
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
AARTRRLN ARTRRER
More than More than
More than 2years Balance More than 2years Balance
Within 1 1 year but but less sheet Within 1 1 year but butless sheet
year or on less than than 5 carrying year or on less than than 5 carmying
demand 2 years years Total amount demand 2years years Total amount
-ER O -ENER RENLR -Ef ENLE RENLE

aEX JMRE  OREF L FEE  #fEx  JMEE WG 48 E@E
HKSOO0 RSO0 HKSOO0  HKSOD  HKSOOO RSO HKSO0 RSO HKSO0 kSO
AR AR AR TER TER T ThL ThL ThL ThT

Bank borrowings Bk 146,731 276 184 147,91 146,182 1484 1293 2644 133,263 130,541
Creditors and BRI

acerued charges 18412 4,089 - 22561 22561 4586 - 1847 6433 6433
Amount due tothe utimate  FERTSER

holding company DR - - - - - 1% - - 19 19
Amount due toa Ef-FRELAE

related company 3,650 - - 3650 3650 2997 - - 2997 2997
Financial iabltes of disposal 7

group classified as held

for sale 432 - - 432 432 - - - - -

169,285 4365 184 173,834 172825 9219 12913 4491 142,845 140,123

Fivncil quaranteesissued:  DEEZSBER:

Maimum amount BERGEAEE

quaranteed (nots 260 (st 261a)) 185 - - 18 - w3 - - " -
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; % ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 24.

FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

a) Financial risk factor (Continued)

it)  Liquidity risk (Continued)

4o i L e 4 2L e 1L (48D

a)

£l AL B PR ()

i) B E ()

The Company
N
2009 2008
“EENE ks
Contractual undiscounted Contractual undiscounted
cash outflow cash outflow
AORRRRLSR ANARRRER
Balance Balance
Within 1 sheet Within 1 sheet
year or on carrying year or on carrying
demand Total amount demand Total amount
—ERg —ERg
RER a8 REE REX a7 REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiET TET ThR TR TEL TAL
Creditors and ERERRENFS
accrued charges 9,642 9,642 9,642 517 517 517
Financial guarantees issued: DBz EBIER
Maximum amount BERNKASE
guaranteed (note 26(a)) GEXEE) 145,185 145,185 - 130,243 130,243 -

iii)  Interest rate risk
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily
from bank borrowings. The interest rates
and maturity information of the Group's bank

borrowings are disclosed in note 21.

iii) RS
RNEE 7 N K E g E 2K
BIRITEE - AEE 2R
TEREZNERIHER
21 H R o
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4FA " H=+—H IFF¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTtHE)

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

a)

Financial risk factor (Continued)

iii)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2009, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 1 percentage
in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, would decrease/increase the
Group’s result after tax and retained profits by
approximately HK$6,000 (2008: HK$21,000).
Other components of consolidated equity would
not be affected (2008: HK$Nil) by changes in
interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates that
the impact on the Group’s result after tax (and
retained profits) is estimated as an annualised
impact on interest expense of such a change
in interest rates, which exposes the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating
rate non-derivative instruments held by the
Group at the balance sheet date. The analysis is

performed on the same basis for 2008.

Currency risk
Currency risk arises on financial instruments that
are denominated in a currency other than the

functional currency in which they are measured.

The Group's exposure to currency risk is

insignificant.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; % ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

b)  Fair values

0

24. AL BE AT BB AP (1)

b)  AVfE
Financial instruments carried at fair value i) B FEFEEHTA
The following table presents the carrying value TREJINEEEARE
of financial instruments measured at fair value A 2B BV BHRELER
at the balance sheet date across the three FIGeHITA  KEFE
levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in FrEEMN A FEARZSRS
HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”, ERN=ZEERF  LLATF
with the fair value of each financial instrument EBEFENEMIAZR
categorised in its entirety based on the lowest BEME BEEIHENS
level of input that is significant to the that fair MTAEZAFEBZED
value measurement. The levels are defined as AR ANREER B
follows: B A QA FEEEM
EEZ - BESHRFBN
T
. Level 1 (highest level): fair values - BIR(EEFER):
measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) FBEERTSFR
in active markets for identical financial AT AENRE
instruments (RERAE)FERF
BE
o Level 2: fair values measured using quoted —  B2#: FR1EEE
prices in active markets for similar financial misPREUSHIT A
instruments, or using valuation techniques HIRE  HFEEZE
in which all significant inputs are directly or A ERE SRR
indirectly based on observable market data ROBETSEEN
HERN - FEATF
fBE
o Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured - FIR(HEZER) :
using valuation techniques in which any FMRAEMEZH AL
significant input is not based on observable SEER A B R M S
market data BOMmERMNTER
FEE
2009
—ETNE
The Group The Company
K& AT
Level 1 Level2 Level3 Total Level1 Level2 Level3 Total
E-8 R =R At E-H E-f E=R &3t
Assets EE
Available-for-sale e
unlisted equity E il
securities BAES - 1,280 - 1,280 - - - -
Available-for-sale AfE
unlisted debt L
securities BAES 3,500 - - 3500 3500 - - 3500
3500 1280 - 4780 3500 - - 3500
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4FA " H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

b)  Fair values (Continued)

i) Financial instruments carried at fair value (Continued)

During the year there were no significant
transfers between instruments in Level 1 and
Level 2.

ii)  Fair values of financial instruments carried at other
than fair value
The carrying amounts of the Group's and the
Company’s financial instruments carried at cost
or amortised cost are not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 December 2009
and 2008.

¢)  Estimation at fair values
The following summarises the major methods and
assumptions used in estimating the fair values of
financial instruments.

i) Securities

Fair value for the unlisted equity investments
are estimated using the applicable fair value
measurement of the relevant assets and
liabilities of the investee. Fair value of unlisted
debt securities is based on observable market
data at the balance sheet date without any
deduction for transaction costs.

ii)  Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
The fair value is estimated as the present value of
future cash flows, discounted at current market
interest rates for similar financial instruments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; % ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

25. COMMITMENTS

a)

Commitments in respect of the Group's properties
under redevelopment for sale outstanding at 31
December 2009 not provided for in the financial

statements were as follows:

25. 7R¥E

a)

MBREPRTREINR -FZ
NE+ZA=+—HREERER
SERFLEZBRRTVEER
ZHESEWT

The Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EENE —TT)N\HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FA&T
Authorised and contracted ERERDETH
for but not provided for BRERE 81,699 2,736

Significant leasing arrangements in respect of land and
buildings classified as being held under finance leases
and properties held for sale are described in notes 13
and 16.

The Group leased out properties held for sale under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of one to two years, with an option to renew
the lease after that date at which time all terms are
renegotiated. Lease payments are usually reviewed
every year to reflect market rentals. None of the leases

includes contingent rentals.

SEARERERERF MFE
HEMEZ AR RIEFZE
AEELZHHAWE13 %16 -

AEERBLEANEEREIE
HEZWE X HEBATR—
EMF - BHHERAEER G E
MERAEE - H2BFEFE
TERARRIIZHEEKF -
BEHERRHRES -
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4FA " H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

25. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED) 25.

The Group's total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are receivable

as follows:

The Group as lessor

R (&)

AEBERBEIAIRELEHEOZ
AU REHSARRMT

TEBERSHEA
The Group
AEE
2009 2008
—ETHRE —TT)NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEIT TET
Within 1 year —F R 1,797 1,860
After 1 year but within 5 years —FUERAFUARA 423 1,083
2,220 2,943
c)  BRUNAEMAESN RNEBABEIER

c) Apart from the above leases, the Group is the lessee in
respect of a number of properties held under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of
one to three years, with an option to renew the lease
when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases
includes contingent rentals.

At 31 December 2009, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in
respect of office properties and office equipment are

payable as follows:

BREREMOBEZNEZAH

A ZEREZNRFHBES

—E-F NERENENMB
FREED  ZEHEMERS

RZETNF+=_A=+—8"
EBEAMAEMERMAEZRHEZ

Lk §Fdn

HAET 2 RKJE

NE&EESEEAT

The Group as lessee REBERBEA
2009 2008
ZBENEF  —TETN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THT
Within 1 year —F AR 2,877 1,903
After 1 year but within 5 years —EPRBEBERENARN 4,206 180
7,083 2,083

d) At 31 December 2009, the Company had no material
commitments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; % ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

26. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

a) Financial guarantees issued

At the balance sheet date, the Company issued the

following guarantees:

i)

At 31 December 2009, the Company had given
unconditional guarantees to banks to secure loan
facilities made available to certain wholly-owned
subsidiaries to the extent of approximately
HK$284 million (2008: HK$318 million). The
extent of such facilities utilized by these
subsidiaries at the balance sheet date amounted
to approximately HK$145 million (2008: HK$130

million).

At 31 December 2009, the Company had given
corporate guarantees to a bank for issuing
letters of indemnity to third parties in respect
of contracts undertaken by a wholly-owned
subsidiary to the extent of approximately
HK$268,000 (2008: HK$268,000). The extent
of such facilities utilised by third parties at the
balance sheet date amounted to approximately
HK$185,000 (2008: HK$243,000).

The Company has not recognised any deferred income

in respect of the above guarantees issued because

the fair value of these guarantees was insignificant.

As at the balance sheet date, the directors do not

consider it probable that a claim will be made against

the Company under any of the guarantees.

26. BEAREE KA

a)

[BE4:iP4 3¢ 3
REER ARBEHITUATE
&

i) RZZEEALEFE+ZA
+—H ARAFBEMAR
TR EG M ER - BB
RETEZEWEB A @H
284,000,000 L (==
J\#F : 318,000,000 7T )
ZIEEME - RNEER -
ZEMBRAE B A%
% B & B #7145,000,000
B ZZE T N\ F:
130,000,000 7T) °

i) RZZEZNF+ A
=+—H AARBHIRE
ThRE—EMEENBRARET

AEEZEHNRME=FED
Rek - MERITIER A RE
1R#)268,000/ 8L (=T F
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B E=ZRRREAERTER
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4FA " H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

26. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(CONTINUED)

b) Contingent liability in respect of a claim
A subsidiary of the Company was involved in a dispute
in connection with the contract for the foundation
work on the redevelopment of residential properties
in Hong Kong. As claimed by the contractor, the total
expected additional construction costs may amount to
approximately HK$16.19 million. The Company is of
the view that the claim is based on unreasonable and
invalid grounds and therefore unfounded. The directors
are of the view that this claim will not have a material
adverse impact on the financial position of the Group.
No provision has therefore been made in respect of

this claim.

Except for the aforesaid, the Group and the Company do not
have any material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2009 and 2008.

27. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

a) Key management personnel remuneration
All members of key management personnel are the
directors of the Company, and the remuneration for

them is disclosed in note 7.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; % ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥

27. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

b)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

27. HERIEA LA 5 (4)

Financing arrangements b)  EAEERHE
Amounts
owed to Related interest
related parties (expenses)/income
As at Year ended
31 December 31 December
EXEBALTE HEFIS () WA
R+=B=t+—-8H BE+-A=t-HLEE
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EENE —TTN\F —ETRE ZZTNEF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiisE THET FHET FTET FET
Due to a related JER — R A R RUR
company (i) - 2,997 - -
Due to a substantial EN—EEZERRFE
shareholder (i) 3,650 - - -
Due to the ultimate FER B AR TR
holding company REFRIE (i) - 152 - -
Due to a substantial FIARELE ZHE
shareholder as ARBENZ
included in liabilities EN—EEE
of disposal group EE e
held for sale (i) 216 - - -
Note: B3

i) The outstanding balances with these related parties are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms.
The amounts owed to related parties are included in “Trade
and other payables” (note 20) and “Liabilities of disposal group

classified as held for sale” (note 19).

Details of new loans and loans repaid during the period
are disclosed in the consolidated cash flow statement.

i) ZEBEHMA L2 REBERTE
iR PR EREETEERS -
ERBABALTZREBEDFFATE
SREMBEAZKIE] (H:20) &
DERABELENHEERNNE
A (FEEE19) ©

HAIEER N EEERZF
BHEERNGEARERER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4FA " H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

27. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 27. WEBHEA LY (4)

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

¢)  Other related party transactions ¢  HAbBHEEALZRS

i)

On 8 October 2009, the Group entered into an
agreement with Hong Fok Corporation Limited
("HFC"), the ultimate holding company of the
Company from 1 August 2007 to 15 December
2009 and a substantial shareholder from 16
December 2009 onwards, pursuant to which the
Group agreed to sell and HFC agreed to purchase
the Group's interests in Maincon (Building) Pte
Ltd and its subsidiary (collectively referred to
as “Maincon Group”) at the cash consideration
of S$1. The transaction was completed on
12 October 2009 and resulted in a gain of
approximately HKD4,940,000 on such disposal
(see note 28). In the opinion of the Company's
directors, this transaction was conducted in
normal commercial terms and in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the
Group paid management fee of approximately
HK$10.9 million (2008: HK$7.9 million) to a
subsidiary of Hong Fok Land International
Limited for share of administrative expenses.
The management fee is determined quarterly
between the respective parties after
negotiations having regard to the cost of services
provided. In the opinion of the Company’s
directors, this transaction was conducted on
normal commercial terms and in the ordinary
course of the Group's business.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; % ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥

27. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

27.

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

i) During the year ended 31 December 2009,

the Group paid to subsidiaries of HFC an
amount of approximately HK$847,000 (2008:
HK$1,039,000) for share of office expenses. This
sharing of office expenses were mutually agreed

by both parties. In the opinion of the Company’s

directors, this transaction was conducted on

normal commercial terms and in the ordinary

course of the Group’s business.

28. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

28.

On 12 October 2009, the Group disposed of its interest in

Maincon Group, the details of which are also disclosed in

note 27(c). The net liabilities of Maincon Group at the date of

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

HHEBEA LS (%)

il REBEE-_ZTZTAF+-A
=t+—HALEFE A£E
B 9 465 9% A = 59 32 1 10
BEEZHE AR MR
JH#)847,0008 L (= EF
J\4E : 1,039,000/ 7T ) °
DIERAERZTIAER
HEBTE - ARBESR
B RRSTIE—REE
BRRERAEE R T ER
RIZFETT o

5 T I 48 i)
R-FTAF+HA+=B  ARE®

EEM Maincon B 2 iz - BN
A FE27(c) 35 - Maincon S E R H

disposal were as follows: EHHzaEFHEOT
2009
—EThEF
HK$'000
FET
Net liabilities disposed of: HEZBEFHE -
Bank balances and cash RITHBRRIR S 25
Trade and other payables g 5 R H b EUR BRI (150)
(125)
Amount due from Maincon Group Maincon S #5 /) 2 5kIE 76
Release of exchange reserve bE 5 R el (4,891)
(4,940)
Gain on disposal HEEIE 2 s 4,940
Total consideration BRE =
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEHELE RS RTFHE
Cash consideration ReRE =
Bank balances and cash disposed of HESERITEBREIAS (25)
(25)
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEE4FA " H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

29. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Notes 13 and 24 contain information about the assumptions
and their risk factors relating to valuation of investment
properties and financial instruments. Other key sources of

estimation uncertainty are as follows:

a)  Depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives, after
taking into account the estimated residual value. The
Group reviews annually the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any. The depreciation expense
for future periods is adjusted if there are significant

changes from previous estimates.

b) Valuation of inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value at the balance sheet date. Net
realisable value is determined on the basis of the
estimated selling price less the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale. The management
estimates the net realisable value for inventories
based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current
market conditions. In addition, the management
performs an inventory review on a product-by-product
basis at each year end date and assess the need for

write down of inventories.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; % ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

29. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

¢

d)

Allowance for impairment of doubtful debts

Allowance for impairment of doubtful debts are
assessed and provided based on the directors’
regular review of ageing analysis and evaluation
of collectibility. A considerable level of judgement
is exercised by the directors when assessing the
credit worthiness and past collection history of each
individual customer. Any increase or decrease in the
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts would

affect profit or loss in future years.

Provision of deferred tax

Determining income tax provisions involves
judgement on the future tax treatment of certain
transactions. The management evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions are set
up accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions
is reconsidered periodically to take into account all
changes in tax legislation. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for tax losses not yet used and temporary
deductible differences. As those deferred tax assets
can only be recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against
which the unused tax credits can be utilized, the
management’s judgement is required to assess the
probability of future taxable profits. Management's
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional
deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes
probable that future taxable profits will allow the

deferred tax asset to be recovered.

29. WK kAt BOA i ()

A wT AN R B R 2 T AU ()

)

d

R o 1 15
RRREREDRIEEE YRR
DT Z E Wi E R AT 1 2 &Y
EEITREE MR G - EFREHE
BUBAARF ZEEEEMRBE
WK R BRI R 1E 1B FI B o R
HROR B B 2 (TR 18 &2 B R
KREE 2182

BEMSHERSRHRXLRZS
RIS ERIZ O HIE - BIEERY
HERBEXHHOHRBEE - WaHR
HENREER ASEEME
MEBELXHORBEE - A
RBBIAROMBIER - BER
REERMAN BB EN
ERERMER - ARNIRERIE
BERRERAT LS LI A%
AT IR & B R A0 0 R 2R g AR
HMAEES @®R - IAREER
I JE A SRR IER A A A]
Bl - ARBETHEHNEEEDN
aPfh - AnRAR AT BERE TS BE R IR
ERBEENARRERMNE &
SRREIETEHRIBEE
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTtHE)

30. NON-ADJUSTING POST BALANCE SHEET

31.

EVENTS

On 16 November 2009, the Group entered into an
agreement with HFC to sell its interests in the entire issued
share capital of Goldease Investments Limited (“Goldease”)
and the amount owed by the subsidiaries of Goldease to
the Group for a total cash consideration of S$10,150,000
(equivalent to approximately HKD56,434,000). Such
transaction was completed on 25 January 2010 and resulted
in a gain of approximately HKD12,000,000. In the opinion of
the Company's directors, this transaction was conducted in
normal commercial terms and in the ordinary course of the
Group's business.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

As a result of the application of HKAS 1 (revised)
and HKFRS 8

, certain comparative figures have

“Presentation of Financial Statements”
"Operating Segments”
been adjusted to conform to current year's presentation
and to provide comparative amounts in respect of items
disclosed for the first time in 2009. Further details of these

developments are disclosed in note 2.
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30.

31.

FE A4 0 AR PR

RZEZRNF+—-—A+<B K&
BEBEEEXUGE DEHE
M Goldease Investments Limited
([Goldeasel) 2 # B2 #TR A 2
#2850 L K GoldeaselE T K B 2
AR AEE e ReaRE
ﬁ1qmammﬁbuﬁ7d$afﬁém
56,434,000 7T) - ZXHER =
%E*ﬂ:+£HﬁWE§$ZWE
#9/12,000,00087C c AAFREEFR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

32. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, R2. ARE_ZFZNLET A
NEW STANDARDS AND = H kAR JE OB fE Vg AR
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT ARG ~ B G REZ
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED W] i 5

31 DECEMBER 2009

Up to the date of these financial statements, the HKICPA BEIAWBREAH  BEGA
has issued the following amendments, new standards and EELEMTIREEZSETNF+=
interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended A=+—BILFEEKRERERITB
31 December 2009 and which have not been adopted in MR ZASET ~ EA 2 o

these financial statements.

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUT BEs 22613

ZEFHHIBEN
HKFRS 3 (Revised) " Business Combinations” 1 July 2009
BB WMEERE 3 5 (KIEE]) - ZHFASH ZEENF+LA—H
Amendments to HKAS 27 “ Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements” 1 July 2009
BERGETERNE 27 RSN - A RE LI HHRE —ETNFLHA—H
Amendments to HKAS 39 " Financial Instruments:

Recognition and Measurement” — Eligible hedged items 1 July 2009
BAESEERE I FRER 2HTA -

BIBRAE D EREHEE —FFNFLAH
HK(IFRIC) — Int 17 " Distributions of Non-Cash Assets to Owners” 1 July 2009
a5 (R BmEREZES) - 2EBEF17% -

BN SR 2 EE —EThFLHA—HA
Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 1 July 2009 or

1 January 2010
ZEBNFREBIM B EmE LR 2 BE —ETNFLHA—H

T —FF—H—H

Amendments to HKFRS 1 “ First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards” — Additional exemptions for First-time Adopters 1 January 2010
BBMBWMEERNBRNEN - BRANE BB RERER — B ENGEINEE —2—2F—HF—H
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #;% ~FEEN4F A - H=+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA ICATH)

32. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, . AMBRE_ZFEZNLET A
NEW STANDARDS AND Z4— H R4 B M N R
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT 2 ) ~ BrdER) R R

YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2009 (CONTINUED)

RS ()

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUT BEs 2 &6
ZEFTHEEN

Amendments to HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment” — Group
cash-settled share-based payment transactions

BRI MEERFE25RAEDN - URDBERLITH —
FEEBAREBEEN R A EX S

Amendments to HKAS 32 “Financial Instruments — Presentation”
— Classification of rights issue
EBSEERIENNNBN 2@ LA — 28 — BRI

HKAS 24 (Revised) “Related Party Disclosures”
BRGTHERSE 245 (KIER]) - BET 175

Amendments to HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 “HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their
Interaction” — Prepayments of a minimum funding requirement

58 (AR BRERBEES) - RBF 145088 2827
BANE 199 — REETEE RIEEEZELKK

1 January 2010

1 February 2010
—E-ZEF-A—H

1 January 2011
—ET——F—H—H

1 January 2011

Bifa#E — RIEEEEZRKZTH —ZE——%—H—H
HK(IFRIC) — Int 19 “Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity

Instruments” 1 July 2010
T8 (BB BRERREES) 2B 9% B TAMEHEE —Z—ZF+H—H

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
EBNEMELERNESE - 2H LA

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact

on the Group's results of operations and financial position.
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1 January 2013
—E—=F—H—H
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Particulars of the Group’s major properties under development for

sale and properties held for sale as at 31 December 2009 are as

follows:

Properties under development for sale

Group Properties 45 H ¥ 3¢

AEER_ZZEANF+_A=+—HBZEZE
HREEZBERTMERBIELEMEFBL
T~

B Z R R

Percentage
Gross floor area interest attributable

FERE Y to the Group
Location Existing Use sq. m. AEEELER
ih B BRI A FFHK Aokt
THE ICON, 38 Conduit Road, Residential premises 3,593 100%
Mid-levels, Hong Kong redevelopment in progress
THE ICON, &/#&¥ 1L FT1258 3858 T - BRETH
Assets of disposal group classified as held for sale I3 38 R Fe A th B AL 2 W
Properties held for sale ST (N ETE'S
Percentage
Gross floor area interest attributable
R to the Group
Location Existing Use sq. m. AEE RS
ih B REAR FHK Bt
3 units of ten@suffolk at Residential 360 100%
Suffolk Road, Singapore =
ESImIES
5 units of Jewel of Balmoral Residential 756 100%
at Balmoral Park, Singapore F=

AR
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting
of the Company will be held at Room 3201, 9 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong on 11 May 2010 at 11:00 a.m. for the following

purposes:

(1) To receive and consider the statement of accounts and the
reports of the directors and the auditors for the year ended
31 December 2009.

(2)  To re-elect retiring directors and to fix their remuneration.

(3)  To re-appoint auditors and to authorise the board of directors
to fix their remuneration.

(4)  To consider and, if thought fit, pass, with or without
amendments, the following resolutions as Ordinary
Resolutions:

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

A.  "THAT there be granted to the directors of the
Company an unconditional general mandate to
repurchase shares of HK$0.05 each in the capital of the
Company and that the exercise by the directors of the
Company of all powers of the Company to purchase
shares of the Company subject to and in accordance
with all applicable laws, be and are hereby generally
and unconditionally approved, subject to the following
conditions:

(@)  such mandate shall not extend beyond the

Relevant Period;

(b)  the aggregate nominal amount of share capital of
the Company to be purchased by the directors
of the Company during the Relevant Period shall
not exceed 10 per cent. of the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital of the Company in

issue as at the date of passing this Resolution;

1 44 Winfoong International Limited 4% 4 5 BX 4 R /A 7]

BBEAQNREIIRN -_Z—ZFRA+—H
EFT—RERBEERRKEFRIFNI201E
BITRRAFRE  LRETHEE
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St RALEFREZREBERALES
FHMENZBENRE ©

ENEREREZNBEEENE -

ENMEERBMEEEEETSEERX
BEDEN S -

ZREBBERE(ERESER) T
ZRBRBEBRRESR

Wl ER

A [ B — AR I I L A AR
BTARARERTE —MRIZEARE
BIARFRKRASFREMEO.05
BILZBG URARBEES
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(c)

Notice of Annual General Meeting J§ 3 38 4F K 7 i %

for the purposes of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the date of
passing this Resolution until whichever is the earlier
of:

() the conclusion of the next annual general

meeting of the Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within which the
next annual general meeting of the Company is
required by the bye-laws of the Company or any

applicable laws of Bermuda to be held; and

(iii)  the revocation or variation of this Resolution by
an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the

Company in general meeting.”

“THAT there be granted to the directors of the
Company an unconditional general mandate to issue,
allot and deal with additional shares in the capital of
the Company and to make or grant offers, agreements
and options including warrants, bonds and debentures
convertible into shares in respect thereof, subject to

the following conditions:

(@) such mandate shall not extend beyond the
Relevant Period save that the directors of the
Company may during the Relevant Period make
or grant offers, agreements and options including
warrants, bonds and debentures convertible into
shares which might require the exercise of such

powers after the end of the Relevant Period;

RARZERME ¢

[BRAHIE ] fE BB RERRA
HEETI =P 2&FAHAR
bz HAR

() ARBATERRBFXE
RERE

(i) BARBARHAEFREL
B A2 EPRERAD H
ARABTEERBFRE
Z HRfERE ¢ R

(iii) $“ﬂ%$&%$k@i
TRRBRBEEENR
$&%%ZE°J

[BRERIETARAESS
—RRIRFEIAETT - BLBERRIER

RE AR Z BN - I FR UL
RIS M - s M BRE

(BRERAREE BErkAUEH
Bty 2 E%)  HEAZ T IR
BRI :

(a) ZERETREEABHHE
A& EARARBERAR
BERHEART IS
AR BHHRERRITE
RERNZER HER
BRE (BRRIER &
R AT 2 E5F)
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the aggregate nominal amount of share
capital allotted or agreed conditionally or
unconditionally, to be allotted (whether pursuant
to an option or otherwise) and issued by the
directors of the Company pursuant to sub-
paragraph (a) above, otherwise than pursuant to
(i) a Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined); (ii) the
exercise of rights of subscription or conversion
attaching to any warrants issued by the Company
or any securities which are convertible into
shares of the Company; (iii) any issue of shares in
the Company under any option scheme or similar
arrangement for the time being adopted for
the grant or issue to officers and/or employees
of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries
of shares or rights to shares; and (iv) any scrip
dividend or similar arrangement providing for the
allotment of shares in lieu of the whole or part of
a dividend on shares in accordance with the bye-
laws of the Company in force from time to time;
shall not exceed 20 per cent. of the aggregate
nominal amount of the issued share capital of
the Company in issue on the date of passing
this Resolution and the approval granted shall be
limited accordingly; and

for the purpose of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the
date of passing this Resolution until whichever is
the earlier of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general

meeting of the Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within which
the next annual general meeting of the
Company is required by the bye-laws of
the Company or any applicable laws of
Bermuda to be held; and
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(i) the revocation or variation of this (i) ARBREEREAKR
Resolution by an ordinary resolution of the 2 AR RREER
shareholders of the Company in general HEFRARNRFERZ
meeting. H -

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open for
a period fixed by the directors of the Company to
holders of shares on the register of members of
the Company on a fixed record date in proportion
to their then holdings of such shares (subject to
such exclusions or other arrangements as the
directors of the Company may deem necessary
or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements
or having regard to any restriction or obligation
under the laws of, or the requirements of
any recognised regulatory body or any stock
exchange in, or in any territory outside, Hong

Kong)."”

“THAT, conditional upon the passing of the
Resolutions Nos. A and B above, the aggregate
nominal amount of the shares in the capital of the
Company which are repurchased by the Company
pursuant to and in accordance with the Resolution
No. A above shall be added to the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital of the Company that may
be allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to
be allotted by the directors of the Company pursuant to

and in accordance with the Resolution No. B above.”
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By Order of the Board AEEGMH

Winfoong International Limited BUHRERAT
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick e

Chairman fER ki

Hong Kong, 9 April 2010 /R ZET-FTFNANA
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Notes:

A member entitled to attend and vote at the above meeting is entitled to
appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of him. A proxy need not be a

member of the Company.

Concerning Resolution No. (4)B above, the directors wish to state that
they have no immediate plans to issue any new shares of the Company
but approval is being sought from the members as a general mandate for
the purpose of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Listing Rules”).

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 7 May 2010 to
11 May 2010, both days inclusive, for the purpose of establishing entitlement
of shareholders to vote at the meeting. During this period, no transfers of
shares will be effected. All transfers of shares accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company's branch registrar in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East. Wan Chai,
Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 6 May 2010.

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, at any general meeting, a

resolution put to the vote of the meeting must be taken by poll.

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Company, Messrs. Cheong Kim Pong,
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert and Mr. Kan Fook Yee retire by rotation and, being

eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The translation into Chinese language of this notice is for reference only. In

case of any inconsistency, the English version shall prevail.
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